
Dexter Township

6880 Dexter-Pinckney Road 

Dexter, MI  48130

Telephone: 734-426-3767 

Fax: 734-426-3833 

www.dextertownship.org 
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Harley B. Rider 

Supervisor 

Debra A. Ceo 

Clerk 

Libby Brushaber 

Treasurer 

Michael J. Compton 

James L. Drolett 

William C. Gajewski 

Mark D. Mesko 

Trustees “ A   C o m m u n i t y    F o r    A l l    S e a s o n s ” 

Board of Trustees – Meeting Agenda 
21 July 2020  -  7:00 PM 

NOTE: In accordance with Governor Whitmer’s Executive Orders, this meeting will be a “virtual” meeting held by video 
conferencing. Township Board members will participate remotely by video. The public is invited to participate via video or 
phone. A link to the meeting will be posted on the Township Website. 

1. Call to Order

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Supervisor’s Remarks / Conflict Of Interest Check

4. 1st Call for Public Comment (Comment on items that are not on the agenda. The Board will entertain public

comments on agenda items as they come up for discussion.)

5. Approval of the Agenda

6. Approval of the Minutes

A. June 10, 2020, Special Board Meeting (Page 1)

B. June 16, 2020, Regular Board Meeting (Page 9)

7. Consent Agenda – None

8. Reports (Oral presentation)

A. Broadband Research Committee – Trustee Compton

B. Western Washtenaw Recycle Authority (WWRA) – Trustee Compton

9. Unfinished Business – None

10. New Business

A. Request to Re-Zone D-04-36-200.003 (4585 Wylie Rd.) from AG to RR (Page 13)

B. Amendment to Ordinance No. 3-A – Silver Lake Boating Hours (Page 39)

C. Fireworks Ordinance (New) (Page 43)

D. Township “Welcome” signs (Page 49)

11. Authorization of Payments / Transfer of Funds

A. General, Fire, Police, Fire Sub-Station, Multi-Lakes Enterprise & Agency Fund Payments – Clerk
Debra Ceo (Attachment page 53. Second run to be distributed at Board meeting.) 

B. Transfer of Funds 

12. 2nd Call for Public Comment

13. Other Issues, Comments and Concerns of Board Members & Staff

14. Future Agenda Items

A. Zoning Ordinance

B. Ordinance #37 (PDR) Amendments

C. Single Trash Hauler Ordinance

15. Adjournment

http://www.dextertownship.org/


Dexter Township Board of Trustees Meeting Agenda 21 July, 2020 

The next regularly scheduled monthly meeting of the Dexter Township Board is 
Tuesday, August 18, 2020 at 7:00 PM 

NOTE: If the August meeting is going to be a “virtual” meeting, details will be posted on the Township’s Website the Friday 
prior to the meeting. All “virtual” meetings are open to public participation.  

 

Items in Bold are attached. Items not in bold were not received in time to be included in the packet. 

Attachments – Township: NOTE: Listed items are attached to the packets for Board members, and posted on the 

Township website. Others can obtain copies of the reports by making a request to Township staff.  

1) Supervisor’s Report (Page 55) 

2) Clerk’s Report (Page 57) 

3) Treasurer’s Report (Page 59) 

4) Trustees’ Report (No report) 

5) Assessor’s Report (No report) 

6) Director of Planning & Zoning Report / Zoning Board of Appeals Report (Page 61) 

7) Planning Commission Report (Page 65) 

8) Capital Improvement Plan Committee Report (No meeting, no report) 

9) Personnel Policy Committee Report (No meeting, no report) 

Attachments – Other: NOTE: Listed items are attached to the packets for Board members, and posted on the Township 

website. Others can obtain copies of the reports by making a request to Township staff, or to originating entity.  

1) Chelsea Area Construction Agency Report (No report) 

2) Chelsea Area Fire Authority Report (No report) 

3) Chelsea Area Planning/Dexter Area Regional Team Report (No report) 

4) Chelsea District Library Report (No report) 

5) Dexter Area Fire Department Report (No report) 

6) Dexter District Library Report (Page 67) 

7) Huron River Watershed Council Report (No report) 

8) Multi-Lakes Sewer Authority Report (No report) 

9) Portage-Base Sewer Authority Report (No report) 

10) Washtenaw Area Transportation Study (WATS) Report (No report) 

11) Washtenaw Area Value Express (WAVE) Report (No meeting, no report) 

12) Washtenaw Broadband Initiative Report (Page 75) 

13) Washtenaw County Road Commission Report (No report) 

14) Washtenaw County Sheriff Report (Page 79) 

15) Western Washtenaw Recycling Authority Report (Page 89) 

 

The Dexter Township Board will provide necessary reasonable auxiliary aids and services, such as signers for the hearing 
impaired and audio tapes of printed materials being considered at the meeting, to individuals with disabilities at the meeting 
upon seven days’ notice to the Dexter Township Board. 

Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact the Dexter Township Board by writing or 
calling the Office Manager at the address and phone number printed at the top of this agenda. 



T:\clerk1\My Documents\Minutes\Minutes2020\Draft\Min 2020 06 10 Draft Special Brd Mtg to Brd.docx

DEXTER TOWNSHIP 

 6880 DEXTER-PINCKNEY RD. 

DEXTER, MI 48130 

 (734) 426-3767 

 
 www.dextertownship.org 

SPECIAL MEETING OF THE DEXTER TOWNSHIP BOARD 

WEDNESDAY, JUNE 10, 2020 9:00 AM 

Location: In accordance with the provision and directives of Governor Whitmer’s Executive Orders, the 
meeting was a “virtual” meeting held over Zoom videoconferencing and was properly noticed and open to 
the public via computer or phone. 

NOTE: THESE ARE DRAFT MINUTES AND ARE SUBJECT TO REVIEW, CORRECTION AND 
APPROVAL BY THE TOWNSHIP BOARD AT THE JULY 21, 2020 REGULAR MEETING 

Meeting called to order by Supervisor Rider at 9:06 AM. 

ROLL CALL: Present – Supervisor Rider, Clerk Ceo, Treasurer Brushaber, Trustees Compton, 
Drolett, Gajewski and Mesko. Also, present: David Rohr, Director of Zoning and Planning. 
McKenna Consulting Planners Brian Keesey and Chris Madigan, Township Planning Commission 
Chair Steve Burch, and Janis Miller, Recording Secretary. 

1ST CALL TO THE PUBLIC: None 

APPROVAL of the AGENDA: Motion by Ceo to approve the agenda. Motion seconded by 
Brushaber.  Roll call vote. Motion carried (7-0). 

DISCUSSION/ACTION: 
A. Huron River Drive Maintenance Cost-Share with Webster Township   (zoom 5:53) 

Motion by Mesko, second by Gajewski, to approve Dexter Township’s cost of $26,500, 

which is our portion for Huron River Drive Maintenance from North Territorial to 

Strawberry Lake Road, pending approval of same by the Webster Township Board. 

Roll Call Vote: Yes – Ceo, Rider, Mesko, Gajewski, Drolett, Compton, No – Brushaber; 

Abstain – none; Absent – none.  Motion carried (6-1).  (zoom 8:32) 

B. Draft Zoning Ordinance (zoom 8:50) 

Presentation by Brian Keesey, AICP, Senior Principal Planner, McKenna Consulting with 

Chris Madigan, Associate Planner. 

(zoom 11:27) 

Questions and Discussion: Wylie Road and Island Lake (Section 36) Planning Commission 

recommended change to (AG) Agriculture.  Cemetery at corner of Quigley Rd. and 

Dexter Townhall (Section 21) and the cemetery on North Lima Center Road (Section 33) 

Harley B. Rider 
Supervisor 

Debra A. Ceo 
Clerk 

Libby Brushaber 
Treasurer 

Michael Compton, 
James Drolett, 

William Gajewski, 
Mark Mesko, 

Trustees 

Page 1 of 92

http://www.dextertownship.org/


Minutes of the Dexter Township Board  June 10, 2020 

T:\clerk1\My Documents\Minutes\Minutes2020\Draft\Min 2020 06 10 Draft Special Brd Mtg to Brd.docx 
  Page 2 of 7 

should be color coded for Public Institutional.  Huron Creek Party Store on Dexter 

Pinckney (RR) Rural Residential vs. (C) Commercial. 

(zoom 26:52) 

Motion by Drolett to rezone the Huron Creek Party Store from (RR) Rural Residential to 

(C) Commercial.  Motion dies due to lack of a second. 

 

Recommendation: Zoning Map - Lakes Residential Districts (zoom 28:13) 

Recommend combining all LR Districts from the Zoning Ordinance Delta K draft into a 

single LR District. The setbacks, height standards, lot coverage standards, etc. were not 

significantly different between the 7 LR Districts.  A single district accomplishes largely 

the same goal, but with less complication for Township residents, staff, and 

administration. 

 

Discussion: Consistent waterbody setbacks. Maximum lot coverage (proposed Section 

7.02). 30% Building Coverage and 45% Impervious surface coverage. 

 

Recommendation: Graphic clarity updates throughout.    (zoom 36:14) 

Discussion:  To better demonstrate what the text says.  Example used was waterbody 

setbacks.  In Figure 16.5 correct the diagram and add “not to scale”. (zoom 40.:52) 

 

 

Recommendation: Changing Article 4 – Schedule of Regulations (zoom 46:18) 

Consolidating regulations from each section allows for quick reference.  

 

Discussion:  Accessory buildings. Amount of parking in (LR) Lakes Residential. Secondary 

dwelling on (LR) Lakes Residential lots.  Article 17, hooking accessory buildings to water 

and sewer.   Duplex is a two-family attached dwelling, not a second accessory dwelling. 

 

(zoom 1:10:03) 

Motion by Drolett, second by Brushaber, to delete accessory dwellings in (LR) Lakes 

Residential draft ZO delta K in Table 5.15 (B)(1)(c) Schedule of Uses. (Reference 

McKenna draft ordinance Article 4, page 4-3, Other Land Use). Short term rentals of 

accessory buildings. 

 

Roll Call Vote: Yes – Drolett, Brushaber, Ceo; No – Compton, Gajewski, Mesko, Rider;  

Abstain – none; Absent – none.  Motion failed (3-4).  (zoom 1:20:00) 

 

Recommendation: Standardization of regulations (zoom 1:21:07) 

Page 2 of 92



Minutes of the Dexter Township Board  June 10, 2020 

T:\clerk1\My Documents\Minutes\Minutes2020\Draft\Min 2020 06 10 Draft Special Brd Mtg to Brd.docx 
  Page 3 of 7 

For ease of use and consistency in application, recommendation is to standardize 

wherever possible, i.e. wetland setbacks standard across all districts, and i.e. clear vision 

heights standard for all bushes, fences and structures. 

 

  Recommendation: Front Yard Setbacks (zoom 1:23:14) 

  Instead of district-specific front yard setbacks, we understand it’s the intent of the 

 Board to have setbacks based on the road a parcel front’s on. This concept is 

 described in each district’s footnotes, which list setbacks applicable to each road. 

 

Discussion:  Front-yard setbacks. Corner lots front, side & rear yards. Definition of front   

yard in draft ZO delta K.  Why differentiation between side and rear yards? Figure 2.7 

Lot Lines correction F/F/S/S to F/F/R/R. 

 

    Recommendation: Planned Unit Developments (PUDs) (zoom 1:49:48) 

A) Recommend that CPUD (Commercial Planned Unit Development) be 

renamed PUD. 

B) Recommend this function as an overlay on top of C General Commercial 

District rather than rezoning.  This will also be considered a zoning map 

amendment necessitation a map update. 

C) Recommend allowing uses not listed in the C general Commercial District in 

an amount up to 20% of the developed land area – allowing the Township 

flexibility to determine compatibility. 

D) PUDs remain a predominately commercial development option. 

E) Recommend in the future the Township consider adding additional flexibility 

into the PUD mechanism. 

 

    Discussion: Mixed use.  (OSC) Open Space Communities. Development Agreements.  

    Land Use Agreement. 

         (zoom 2:03:35) 

    Recommendation: Open Space Community Overlay vs. Open Space Preservation 

A) Zoning Ordinance Delta K draft proposes two distinct districts that follow 

the same general approval process and serve the same function, to preserve 

open space. 

B) The Zoning Enabling Act allows residential PUDs and open space 

preservation options (also known as cluster developments) under the same 

mechanism, and that is what we propose. 

C) The proposed OSC is an overlay in which dedicated open space is preserved, 

with the developer’s incentive being the option to cluster housing to lower 

Page 3 of 92



Minutes of the Dexter Township Board  June 10, 2020 

T:\clerk1\My Documents\Minutes\Minutes2020\Draft\Min 2020 06 10 Draft Special Brd Mtg to Brd.docx 
  Page 4 of 7 

development costs.  The Township gains the ability to help dictate an open 

space network throughout new developments. 

D) In combining the two districts (OSP minimum 50% open space and OSC 

minimum 20% open space) it is the Township’s decision on the appropriate 

preservation standard. 

 

Discussion: Open Space Preservation follows State mandate.  Open Space 

Preservation allows for more flexibility? Big developments in the Township gets to 

dictate how much open space a development preserves.  Also, the Township can 

dictate how much clustering a developer can do.   

 

Motion by Drolett, second by Mesko, to combine OSC and OSP into one section and  

eliminate the numbers under AG/RC, combining AG/RC under the RR numbers.   

(zoom 2:18:49) 

 

Discussion: Decision about minimum open space, between 20% and 50%.  Switching 

to 40% would kill development and dramatically alter the scale of development. 

Twenty percent is a good baseline number.  Consultant has reservation about the 

density bonus numbers being so high as they seem heavily tilted in the developers 

favor, caping at 40% is most reasonable. 

Mesko withdraw second. 

Drolett withdraws motion.  (zoom 2:29:20) 

   

Discussion: Would like to see hard numbers as it is difficult to visualize. McKenna 

draft page 15-6, Section 15.08(B), word “shall” or use “may”?  Developer needs to 

know what to expect in terms of density increase.  Superior Design is subjective. 

 

Motion by Brushaber, second by Compton, to accept the consultant’s 

recommendations in  Article 15 and change the word “shall” to “may” in Section 

15.08(C). (zoom 2:43:34) 

 

      Roll Call Vote: Yes – Ceo, Brushaber, Rider, Mesko, Gajewski, Drolett, Compton; 

      No – none; Abstain – none; Absent – none.  Motion carried (7-0).     (zoom 2:44:45) 

 

11:54 AM Recess 

12:03 PM Back on Record 

 

 

 

Page 4 of 92



Minutes of the Dexter Township Board  June 10, 2020 

T:\clerk1\My Documents\Minutes\Minutes2020\Draft\Min 2020 06 10 Draft Special Brd Mtg to Brd.docx 
  Page 5 of 7 

    Recommendation: Put common regulations in one place (zoom 2:46:42) 

To improve consistency of regulations across the Township, it is recommended all           

regulation tables point to the same General Provision (in this case, Section 16.34). 

Discussion: List uses, lot standards, projection tables. Simplifies each section and makes 

it more useable. 

 

Motion by Compton, second by Mesko, to accept the consultant’s 

recommendation to put common regulations in one place with the technical 

correction 16:18C change 41 to 4; 16:07C  grass from 8 ft to 8 inches; Section  

16.12 take out accessary buildings , the table applies to all buildings and correct 

wording on Table 16.3 to “Maximum Total Building Coverage”. (zoom 2:49:15) 

 

Roll Call Vote: Yes – Ceo, Rider, Mesko, Gajewski, Brushaber, Drolett, Compton;  

No – none; Abstain – none; Absent – none.  Motion carried (7-0).   (zoom 2:46:48) 

 (zoom 2:57:23) 

Recommendation: Adding Section 28.08 – Special Use Amendments, Expansion 

A) Zoning Ordinance Delta K proposes a list of Administrative Adjustments that 

could  be approve by the Zoning Administrator in coordination with the 

Planning Commission Chair. 

B) To improve transparency to the adjacent property owners, and public, and to 

minimize the chances for a seemingly minor change to have a substantial 

impact on development, we recommend all adjustments to an approved 

Special Land Use be made by the Planning Commission. 

      

Discussion: Increased cost as this could slow the amendment process. Possibly 

eliminate (C) Minor Adjustments in Section 28.10. 

 

Motion by Compton, second by Drolett, to accept the consultant’s 

recommendation for Article 28.   (zoom 3:01:27) 

 

Roll Call Vote: Yes –Compton, Drolett, Brushaber, Gajewski, Mesko, Rider, Ceo; 

No – none; Abstain – none; Absent – none.  Motion carried (7-0).   (zoom 

3:04:42) 

 

Discussion: McKenna draft Table 17.1 – Keeping of Animals, density in regards 

to number of chickens. 

 

Motion by Mesko, second by Compton, for chickens, turkeys, rabbits, or other 

fowl, in Table 17.1, to reduce the minimum lot area for the first animal to one 

Page 5 of 92



Minutes of the Dexter Township Board  June 10, 2020 

T:\clerk1\My Documents\Minutes\Minutes2020\Draft\Min 2020 06 10 Draft Special Brd Mtg to Brd.docx 
  Page 6 of 7 

acre, and reduce the maximum density per animal would be a quarter acre (1/4 

acre) and, keeping the maximum number of animals at ten.  (zoom 3:08:44)  

  

Roll Call Vote: Yes – Rider, Mesko, Gajewski, Brushaber, Drolett, Compton; 

No – Ceo; Abstain – none; Absent – none.  Motion carried (6-1).  (zoom 3:20:27) 

 

Discussion: Shared driveways.  Impervious coverage. 

 

Motion by Gajewski to delete (Mckenna draft) Section 22.08(B)(4) Shared 

Driveways.  Motion dies due to lack of a second. (zoom 3:32:20) 

 

Discussion:  Article 2(W)(3) Surface waterbody definition and the word 

“navigable”. 

 

Motion by Gajewski, second by Compton, to change the definition “Waterbody, 

surface” as: Any area of water that permanently has water flowing or standing 

above ground to the extent that evidence of an ordinary high-water mark is 

established.  Lakes, ponds, whether natural or artificial, rivers, streams, and other 

watercourses not confined to one lot or adjacent to common use property, and 

waters characterized by this definition shall be considered as surface water 

bodies.  Private ponds are not waterbodies for the purpose of this ordinance. 

(Zoom 3:47:57) 

 

    Roll Call Vote: Yes – Compton, Drolett, Brushaber, Gajewski, Mesko, Rider, Ceo; 

No – none; Abstain – none; Absent – none.  Motion carried (7-0).  (zoom 4:00:56) 

    

   Motion by Drolett, second by Mesko, to approve the Zoning Ordinance draft as 

reviewed by the Board, and to forward the approved draft to the Planning 

Commission for their review and a Public Hearing. Roll call vote.  Motion carried 

(7-0). (zoom 4:02:26) 

 
2ND CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  None 
 
Other Issues, Comments and Concerns of Board Members & Staff: 

Compton: Thanked Brian Keesey and the Committee.  Asked about the “Welcome to Dexter 

Township” signs. 

Drolett:  Noted that Chelsea Area Construction Agency meeting tomorrow is cancelled, the 

issues that were to be discussed have been resolved.  Also questioned Compton WWRA 

Township about Putnam residents depositing recycling in Dexter Township. 

Page 6 of 92



Minutes of the Dexter Township Board  June 10, 2020 

T:\clerk1\My Documents\Minutes\Minutes2020\Draft\Min 2020 06 10 Draft Special Brd Mtg to Brd.docx 
  Page 7 of 7 

Mesko: Noted he was happy that progress had been made in finalizing the new Zoning 

Ordinance. 

Rider: Thanked Brian Keesey and Committee. 

 

The meeting was adjourned at 1:38 PM 

 

 

 

 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

 

Debra A. Ceo, Clerk 

Dexter Township 

NOTE: THESE ARE DRAFT MINUTES AND ARE SUBJECT TO REVIEW, CORRECTION AND 
APPROVAL BY THE TOWNSHIP BOARD AT THE  

JULY 21, 2020 REGULAR MEETING 
 
I, THE UNDERSIGNED, DEBRA A. CEO, THE DULY QUALIFIED CLERK FOR THE TOWNSHIP OF DEXTER, WASHTENAW COUNTY, MICHIGAN, DO 
HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE FORGOING IS A TRUE AND COMPLETE COPY OF CERTAIN PROCEEDINGS TAKEN BY THE DEXTER TOWNSHIP BOARD 
OF TRUSTEES AT A SPECIAL BOARD MEETING HELD ON THE 10TH  DAY OF JUNE 2020 AND THAT THE FORGOING MINUTES HAVE BEEN APPROVED BY 
A MAJORITY VOTE OF THE BOARD AT A SCHEDULED MEETING HELD ON THE 21ST DAY OF JULY 2020. 
 

__________________________________ 
DEBRA A. CEO, CLERK, DEXTER TOWNSHIP 

Page 7 of 92



This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Page 8 of 92



T:\clerk1\My Documents\Minutes\Minutes2020\Draft\Min 2020 06 16 Draft Regular Brd Mtg.docx  

DEXTER TOWNSHIP 

 6880 DEXTER-PINCKNEY RD. 

 DEXTER, MI 48130 

 (734) 426-3767 

 
 www.dextertownship.org  

REGULAR MEETING OF THE DEXTER TOWNSHIP BOARD 

TUESDAY, JUNE 16, 2020 7:00 PM 

Location: In accordance with the provision and directives of Governor Whitmer’s Executive Orders, the 
meeting was a “virtual” meeting held over Zoom videoconferencing and was properly noticed and open to 
the public via computer or phone. 

NOTE: THESE ARE DRAFT MINUTES AND ARE SUBJECT TO REVIEW, CORRECTION AND 
APPROVAL BY THE TOWNSHIP BOARD AT THE JULY 21, 2020 REGULAR MEETING 

Meeting called to order by Supervisor Rider at 7:00 PM.  

ROLL CALL: Present – Supervisor Rider, Clerk Ceo, Treasurer Brushaber, Trustees Compton, 
Drolett, Gajewski and Mesko. Also, present: David Rohr, Director of Zoning and Planning. 
SUPERVISOR’S REMARK: Stamboulellis Landscaping has been hired to remove the vision 
obstruction to the west of the fire truck exit at our Fire Sub-Station.   Preparations are 
underway to open the Township office to the public on Monday, July 6, 2020.  We plan to have 
clear shields at the front counter. We are encouraging the public to conduct Township business 
through emails and phone calls as much as possible.  
 
1ST CALL TO THE PUBLIC: None 
APPROVAL of the AGENDA: Motion by Brushaber to approve the agenda with the deletion of 
6B; Approval of the June 10, 2020 Special Meeting minutes and the addition of 8B; WWRA 
Report.  Motion seconded by Compton.  Roll call vote. Motion carried (7-0). 
APPROVAL of the MINUTES: Motion by Drolett to approve the minutes from the May 19, 2020 
Regular Board meeting. Motion seconded by Brushaber.  Roll call vote. Motion carried (7-0).   

CONSENT AGENDA:  None 

COMMITTEE REPORTS:  

Broadband Research Committee: Trustee Compton, Chair of Dexter Township Broadband 
Committee, advised Comcast is applying for a grant to service Dexter Township. 
Western Washtenaw Recycling Authority (WWRA):  Trustee Compton, Chair of WWRA, 
discussed how the bins are full over the weekends and possible solution to address the issue. 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS: None 

 
NEW BUSINESS:   

A. Participation in Washtenaw Urban County Executive Committee:  Motion by Drolett 
to approve continued participation in the Washtenaw Urban County and to continue 
with the current representation, including alternate. Motion seconded by Mesko.  Roll 
call vote.  Motion carried (7-0).  

 

Harley B. Rider 
Supervisor 

Debra A. Ceo 
Clerk 

Libby Brushaber 
Treasurer 

Michael Compton, 
James Drolett, 

William Gajewski, 
Mark Mesko, 

Trustees 

Page 9 of 92

http://www.dextertownship.org/


Minutes of the Dexter Township Board  June 16, 2020 

T:\clerk1\My Documents\Minutes\Minutes2020\Draft\Min 2020 06 16 Draft Regular Brd Mtg.docx 
  Page 2 of 3 

B. Coronavirus Workplace Policy- Policy 02.05.01:  Motion by Mesko to approve Policy 
02.05.01 Coronavirus Workplace Policy and to authorize the Township Executive Team 
to modify the policy as necessary to conform to the Governor’s Executive Orders 
and/or other official directives.  Motion seconded by Compton.  Roll call vote.  Motion 
carried (7-0). 

C. Big Silver Site Condominium Project:  

i. Development Agreement:  Motion by Drolett to approve the Big Silver 
Development Agreement, pending approval of the Master Deed and By-Laws by 
the Township Attorney, and to authorize the Township Supervisor to execute the 
Agreement on behalf of Dexter Township once said legal approval is received 
with the corrections on page 1D; delete “unit” and “expected”, page 6  section 
2.6 change $90,000 to $192,176.00, page 7 first paragraph second line delete 
“reasonably” and “Clerk” .  Motion seconded by Gajewski.  Roll call vote.  Motion 
carried (7-0). 

ii. Private Road Preliminary Approval and Maintenance Agreement:  Motion by 
Drolett to approve Resolution 20-579, a resolution to grant preliminary approval 
to the private road in the Big Silver Site Condominium project, including 
variances from the Dexter Township Road Ordinance as may be specified in the 
plans and letters of review.  Motion seconded by Gajewski.   Roll call vote.  
Motion carried (7-0).  Motion by Mesko to approve the Private Road 
Maintenance Agreement, with changes, (page 1 section A. changing 
“Washtenaw” to “Livingston”, page 2 section I. adding, “will not have use of the 
“private roadway, for access to parcels A&B”, and pending approval by the 
Township Attorney.  Motion seconded by Gajewski.  Roll call vote.  Motion 
carried (7-0). 

 

AUTHORIZATION of PAYMENTS/TRANSFER of FUNDS: 

A. Motion by Brushaber to pay bills in the amount of $56,661.27 from the General Fund, 
$68,523.81 from the Fire Fund, $40,414.50 from the Police Fund, $1,976.75 from the Agency 
Fund, and gross payroll in the amount of $27,875.11.  Motion seconded by Compton.  Roll call 
vote. Motion carried (7-0). 

B. Transfer of Funds: None 

2ND CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  None 
 
 
 
Other Issues, Comments and Concerns of Board Members & Staff: 

Trustee Drolett: Chelsea Area Construction Agency is celebrating 20 years of service to the 
community. 

 

Page 10 of 92



Minutes of the Dexter Township Board  June 16, 2020 

T:\clerk1\My Documents\Minutes\Minutes2020\Draft\Min 2020 06 16 Draft Regular Brd Mtg.docx 
  Page 3 of 3 

Meeting adjourned at 7:56 p.m. 

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS: 

A. Zoning Ordinance 

B. Ordinance #37 (PDR) Revisions 

C. Single Hauler Trash Ordinance 

 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

 

Debra A. Ceo, Clerk 

Dexter Township 

NOTE: THESE ARE DRAFT MINUTES AND ARE SUBJECT TO REVIEW, CORRECTION AND 
APPROVAL BY THE TOWNSHIP BOARD AT THE  

JULY 21, 2020 REGULAR MEETING 
 
I, THE UNDERSIGNED, DEBRA A. CEO, THE DULY QUALIFIED CLERK FOR THE TOWNSHIP OF DEXTER, WASHTENAW COUNTY, MICHIGAN, DO 
HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE FORGOING IS A TRUE AND COMPLETE COPY OF CERTAIN PROCEEDINGS TAKEN BY THE DEXTER TOWNSHIP BOARD 
OF TRUSTEES AT A REGULAR BOARD MEETING HELD ON THE 16TH  DAY OF JUNE 2020 AND THAT THE FORGOING MINUTES HAVE BEEN APPROVED 
BY A MAJORITY VOTE OF THE BOARD AT A SCHEDULED MEETING HELD ON THE 21ST DAY OF JULY 2020. 
 

__________________________________ 
DEBRA A. CEO, CLERK, DEXTER TOWNSHIP 

Page 11 of 92



This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Page 12 of 92



 

  

  DEXTER TOWNSHIP  

  AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 
MEETING OF: Township Board of Trustees 17 September 2020 
Agenda Item Title: 
Request to re-zone parcel D-04-36-200-003 (4585 Wylie Road) from AG to RR 

Submitted by: 
H. Rider 

Explanation of Agenda Item: 
 

This is a forward from the Planning Commission with their recommendation on the applicant’s 
request to re-zone the aforementioned parcel. 

Fiscal or Resource Considerations:       YES  _____  NO  ___x__ 
Does this agenda item require the expenditure of funds?    YES  _____   NO  __x___ 
If YES, are funds budgeted?   YES  _____   NO  _____ 
Are staff or other resources required?   YES  _____  NO __x___ 
Is a budget amendment required?   YES  _____  NO __x___  
 

Attachments:  

• Memo to Township Board from the Director of Zoning & Planning 

• Staff report that was presented to the Planning Commission 

• Draft Minutes of the PC action (yellow emphasis added) 

• PC Resolution  

• Addendum to the PC resolution.  

• Draft Township Board Resolution to approve the re-zone request. 

Staff Comments: 
 

Refer to attachments. NOTE: By submitting the above documents as required, I am neither 
recommending for nor against the re-zone request.  
 

Motion/Action/Recommendation: 
 

Option 1 – Motion to approve Resolution 20-xxx, a resolution 
 

Option 2 – Motion to remand the request to the Planning Commission for further consideration of 
the following issues: (list) 
Option 3 – Motion to postpone action on the request until (date) in order to (reason) 
 

Page 13 of 92



This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Page 14 of 92



 Dexter Township 
Planning & Zoning 

6880 Dexter-Pinckney Road 

Dexter, MI  48130 
Telephone: 734-426-3767 

Fax: 734-426-3833 

dpz@DexterTownship.org 

www.DexterTownship.org 

_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

T:\Supervisor\Board Packets\Board Packet Documents\2020\2020 07 21\LaRoe\(20-PC-202) LaRoe BoT Memo.doc 

Page 1 of 2 

David Rohr 

Director 

Paul Curtis 

Ordinance Officer 

 

    “ A   C o m m u n i t y    F o r    A l l    S e a s o n s ” 
 

 

DATE: July 14, 2020 

TO:  Dexter Township Board of Trustees 

CC: File 

FROM: David Rohr, Director of Planning & Zoning 

RE:  (20-PC-202) LaRoe 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

The Planning Commission received and reviewed a request for a zoning map amendment, (20-PC-202) LaRoe, at its June 

23, 2020 meeting.  The applicant wishes to rezone the property to allow for future residential development. Following the 

public hearing, the Planning Commission adopted a resolution/finding of fact giving a favorable recommendation for the 

zoning map amendment to rezone the property from Agricultural (AG) to Rural Residential (RR). 
 

 

Included in this report are the following materials: 

• Planning Commission Staff Report, dated June 3, 2020; 

• Planning Commission Resolution, approved June 23, 2020;  

• Planning Commission resolution addendum and Summary of Public Meeting Comments, dated June 23, 2020; 

• Planning Commission minutes, dated June 23, 2020; 

 
 

Page 15 of 92



 
(20-PC-202) LaRoe 
 

 
 

T:\Supervisor\Board Packets\Board Packet Documents\2020\2020 07 21\LaRoe\(20-PC-202) LaRoe BoT Memo.doc 

Page 2 of 2 

At this time, the Board of Trustees may: 

1) Act on the Planning Commission’s recommendation to approve the zoning map amendment; 

2) Postpone action to a later date; or 

3) Remand the petition back to the Planning Commission for further review.   

 

If the Board of Trustees decides to postpone, it should have a reason for doing so, such as the need to gather additional 

information, a request of the applicant, etc.  If the petition is remanded to the Planning Commission, the Board of Trustees 

should identify areas of concern or additional information that the Board of Trustees wishes to have addressed or provided 

in order for it to take action. 

 

(Once a zoning text or zoning map amendment has been remanded to the Planning Commission and then returned to the 

Board of Trustees, the Board may take any action it desires.) 
 

The Planning Commission has held a public hearing, as required by the Zoning Enabling Act and the Zoning Ordinance.  

The Board of Trustees may, at its discretion, receive public comment at its meeting, but is not required to do so. 

 

Please contact this office with any additional questions. 
 

David Rohr 

Director of Planning & Zoning 

Dexter Township 

Page 16 of 92



 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT (20-PC-202) LaRoe    June 3, 2020 
 

Page 1  (20-PC-202) LaRoe 

(20-PC-202) LaRoe petition for a zoning map amendment.  Proposed zone change is from 
Agriculture (AG) to Rural Residential (RR).  Property is located at 4585 Wylie Rd. Section 36 of 
Dexter Twp. (D-04-36-200-003). 

  
 

Existing Zoning: Agricultural (AG) 

 

It is the intent of the Agriculture District to preserve, encourage, and provide opportunities for 
agriculture and the retention of land areas in Dexter Township which are well-suited for 
production of food and fiber, while also providing opportunities for comparatively low-density 
rural residential lifestyles and development patterns which encourage the preservation of open 
spaces, including farmland, and other natural resources of the Township and the Township’s 
rural character.  The intent of the Agriculture District is to provide opportunities for the 
conversion of farmland and vacant land to residential use of an overall rural character where 
farming may no longer be viable or desirable to the landowner.  Dexter Township is 
characterized by extensive natural resources including, but not limited to, woodlands, 
wetlands, water courses, and hillsides.  Many of these resources play important environmental 
benefits, including wildlife habitats, recreation, flood control, and water purification, and 
water retention and groundwater recharge areas, and support the desired rural character of 
the community.  The intent of this District is to provide opportunities for comparatively-low 
density residential development in a manner which encourages the preservation of both the 
quantity and quality of these resources.   

Existing Land Use: Single-family house 
Future Land Use Map: Rural Residential 

 

It is the primary intent of the Rural Residential District to encourage and provide 
opportunities for comparatively low-density residential lifestyles and development 
patterns which encourage the preservation of open spaces, including farmland, and other 
natural resources of the Township and the Township’s rural character.  Dexter Township 
is characterized by extensive natural resources including, but not limited to woodlands, 
wetlands, water courses, and hillsides.  Many of these resources play important 
environmental benefits including wildlife habitats, recreation, flood control and water 
purification, and support the desired rural character of the community.  The intent of this 
District is to provide opportunities for comparatively low-density residential development 
in a manner which encourages the preservation of both the quantity and quality of these 
resources. 
 

Area: 439,084 square feet, 10.08 acres  
 
 
 

 North East South West 

Surrounding Zoning Agriculture (AG) Rural Residential 
(RR) Agriculture (AG) Rural Residential 

(RR) 

Surrounding Land Uses 
Single-family 

house, Agricultural 
field 

single-family house single-family house single-family house 

Future Land-Use Map  Rural Residential Rural Residential Rural Residential) Rural Residential 
 
 
 

 Project Narrative: 
Applicant petitions for a zoning map amendment of one (1) tract of land.  Proposed zone 
change is from Agriculture (AG) to Rural Residential (RR). 
 
The proposed parcel. “Parent Parcel” has a frontage of 300 feet along Wylie Rd. and a lot area of 
10.08 acres.  The proposed future splits would result in three (3) separate parcels. Parcel sizes 
would be: 

• Parcel one (parent parcel) = 4.62 acres (gross) 
• Parcel two (2) = 2.46 acres (gross) 

 

Page 17 of 92



 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT (20-PC-202) LaRoe    June 3, 2020 
 

Page 2  (20-PC-202) LaRoe 

• Parcel three (3) = 3 acres (gross) 
 
 
Without a zoning map amendment, it would not be possible to split this property into three 
separate parcels because the splits could not meet the Zoning Ordinance requirements of Section 
11.01 (E)(1) 

1. Minimum Lot Area: The minimum lot area shall comply with one of the following: 
a. Five (5) acres. 
b. One (1) acre, provided the number of lots less than five (5) acres in area that may be created for every ten (10) 

acres of land comprising the lot existing on the effective date of this Ordinance shall be equal to one (1). 
c. One (1) acre, provided all of the following conditions are met: 

1) the number of such lots that may be created, including those that may be created pursuant to (E)(1)(b) above, 
shall not exceed a maximum density of one such lot for each five (5) acres comprising the lot existing on 
the effective date of this Ordinance; 

2) such lots gain direct access from a road other than a minor or major thoroughfare; 
3) a conservation easement or similar legally binding tool prohibiting future development is applied to an area 

of the lot existing on the effective date of this Ordinance, excluding wetlands and year-round submerged 
lands, equal to the difference between five (5) acres and the actual lot sizes proposed; and 

4) A site plan shall be submitted, including the proposed conservation easement to be recorded with the County 
Register of Deeds, for review and approval by the Planning Commission. 

 
 
The proposed zoning map amendment does not appear to have a negative impact on public 
services, such as fire or police, as it would potentially result in only two additional single-family 
houses.  It should not result in a significant increase in traffic. 
 
The proposed zoning map amendment does not appear to have a significant negative impact on 
the surrounding environment. The proposed zoning map amendment is consistent with the 
adopted Master Plan, which calls for the whole property to be Rural Residential.   
 
Following division, the properties will receive new parcel numbers. 
 
No conditions can be placed on the recommendation or approval of the zoning map amendment. 
 
A draft resolution has been attached. 

 
 

 Property History  

• 12/5/2002 final inspection for Permit # (01-ZP-3888) issued for 8x40 covered porch, 
27x27 addition, and 12x50 addition to the rear. 
 

• 7/10/2003 final inspection for permit # (03-ZP-3945) issued for 2 decks on rear of house. 
 

• 6/22/2005 Quit claim deed from T.L. Keppler to Paul LaRoe and T.L. Keppler. 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 18 of 92



 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT (20-PC-202) LaRoe    June 3, 2020 
 

Page 3  (20-PC-202) LaRoe 

 Applicable Land Use Standards:  
Intent of Rural Residential District. 
It is the primary intent of the Rural Residential District to encourage and provide opportunities 
for comparatively low-density residential lifestyles and development patterns which encourage 
the preservation of open spaces, including farmland, and other natural resources of the 
Township and the Township’s rural character.  Dexter Township is characterized by extensive 
natural resources including, but not limited to woodlands, wetlands, water courses, and hillsides.  
Many of these resources play important environmental benefits including wildlife habitats, 
recreation, flood control and water purification, and support the desired rural character of the 
community.  The intent of this District is to provide opportunities for comparatively low-density 
residential development in a manner which encourages the preservation of both the quantity 
and quality of these resources. 

§ 12.01(A), Page 12-1. 
 
Zoning Amendment Process in General. 
Zoning map amendments are addressed in Article 5 of the Dexter Township Zoning Ordinance.  
In General, the Planning Commission reviews the petition and forwards it to the Board of 
Trustees with a findings-of-fact, a summary of comments received at the public hearing, and a 
recommendation. 
 
 
 
Planning Commission Public Hearing. 

1. Planning Commission Review: In reviewing any application for an amendment to this 
Ordinance, the Planning Commission shall identify and evaluate all factors relevant to 
the application. Findings of fact shall be gathered and shall be made a part of the public 
records of the meetings of the Planning Commission. The matters to be considered by 
the Planning Commission shall include, but shall not necessarily be limited to, the 
following: 
a. What, if any, identifiable conditions related to the application have changed which 

justify the proposed amendment? 
b. What are the precedents and the possible effects of such precedent which might 

result from the approval or denial of the application? 
c. What is the impact of the amendment on the ability of the Township and other 

governmental agencies to provide adequate public services and facilities, and/or 
programs that might reasonably be required in the future if the proposed amendment 
is adopted? 

d. Does the proposed district change adversely affect environmental conditions, or the 
value of the surrounding property? 

e. Does the proposed district change generally comply with the adopted General 
Development Plan, and the existing and planned future land use of adjoining 
municipalities? 

f. Is the property in question able to be put to a reasonable economic use in the zoning 
district in which it is presently located? 

2. Outside Agency Review: In determining the above-mentioned findings of fact, the 
Planning Commission may solicit information and testimony from officials of, but not 
necessarily limited to, the County Health Department, County Road Commission, County 
Drain Commission, any school district affected, and the Washtenaw County Planning 
Advisory Board. 

3. Planning Commission Recommendation: The Township Planning Commission shall 
transmit its findings of fact in full, a summary of comments received at the public 
hearing, and its recommendations for disposition of the application to the Township 
Board within a period of sixty (60) days following the required public hearing in Section 
3.07, Public Notice. 

Page 19 of 92



 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT (20-PC-202) LaRoe    June 3, 2020 
 

Page 4  (20-PC-202) LaRoe 

§ 5.04(D), Page 5-1/2. 
 
 

 Other Department Comments: 
No comments at time of Staff Report publication. 
 
 

 
 

 Statement of Facts: 
Application Submitted: May 20, 2020 Applicant 

Public Hearing Scheduled for: July 7, 2020 DPZ Rohr 
Site Visit(s) Conducted by Staff: June 7, 2020 DPZ Rohr 

 
 
 

 
 Legal Notification: 

Legal Ad Submitted to The Sun Times News: May 29, 2020 

Legal Ad Published in The Sun Times News: June 3, 2020 

Letters to Interested Persons Sent: June 8, 2020 

Sign Distributed to Applicant: June 7, 2020 

Public Notice Posted on Township Website: June 12, 2020 
 

 
 

 Attached Materials: 
Aerial Image   
Survey/Plot Plan 
Aerial Image 

  

Current Zoning   
Proposed Zoning 
Future Land Use 

  

Application   
   
   
Draft Resolution attached separately 

 
 
Notes: 
 

Page 20 of 92



 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT (20-PC-202) LaRoe    June 3, 2020 
 

Page 5  (20-PC-202) LaRoe 

2-J Aerial Image: 
 

 
 

Page 21 of 92



 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT (20-PC-202) LaRoe    June 3, 2020 
 

Page 6  (20-PC-202) LaRoe 

Survey: 

   
 
 

 

Page 22 of 92



 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT (20-PC-202) LaRoe    June 3, 2020 
 

Page 7  (20-PC-202) LaRoe 

Plot Plan:  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 23 of 92



 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT (20-PC-202) LaRoe    June 3, 2020 
 

Page 8  (20-PC-202) LaRoe 

Current Zoning: 
 

  
 

Page 24 of 92



 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT (20-PC-202) LaRoe    June 3, 2020 
 

Page 9  (20-PC-202) LaRoe 

Proposed Zoning: 

 
 

 

Page 25 of 92



 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT (20-PC-202) LaRoe    June 3, 2020 
 

Page 10  (20-PC-202) LaRoe 

Future Land Use Map (Dexter Zoning Ordinance) 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 26 of 92



 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT (20-PC-202) LaRoe    June 3, 2020 
 

Page 11  (20-PC-202) LaRoe 

Application: 
 

 

Page 27 of 92



 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT (20-PC-202) LaRoe    June 3, 2020 
 

Page 12  (20-PC-202) LaRoe 

  
 

 
 
 

 

Page 28 of 92



 
Dexter Township 

Planning commission 

6880 Dexter-Pinckney Road 

Dexter, MI  48130 
Telephone: 734-426-3767 

Fax: 734-426-3833 

www.dextertownship.org 

 

Steven Burch  

Chair                      

Marty Straub  

Vice Chair & ZBA rep.  
Tom Lewis   

Secretary  

Bill Gajewski 

Ex-officio Twp. Brd.  

 

Chandra Hurd  

Andy Reiser                        
Bob Nester 

Commissioners 

 

Janis Miller  

 Recording Secretary 
 

 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION 
Meeting conducted via video conferencing 

 
Tuesday, June 23, 2020 

Present: Steve Burch, Chair; Marty Straub, Vice-Chair; Tom Lewis, Secretary; Bill Gajewski; 
Chandra Hurd, Bob Nester and Andy Reiser.  Absent:  None. 

Also present:  David Rohr, Director of Zoning and Planning; and Janis Miller, Recording 
Secretary.  

1. Call to Order:  Mr. Burch called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM. 
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance: Omitted due to teleconferencing 
 
3.   Conflict of Interest: None. 
 
4. Approval of Agenda:  

With no corrections or additions, Mr. Burch declared the agenda approved as presented. 
 

5.   Public Comment: (non-agenda items) None. 
 

6. Action Items: (20-PC-202) LaRoe, 4585 Wylie Rd rezoning request from (AG) Agriculture 
to (RR) Rural Residential 

DZP Rohr noted the applicant has 10 acres and wanted to subdivide the property therefore 
requesting a (RR) Rural Residential zoning classification.  Agriculture zoning requires 
minimum 5 acre lots and Rural Residential zoning requires minimum 2 acre lots. The 
Township Board of Trustees can make a zoning map amendment with a favorable 
recommendation from the Planning Commission. 

 
Paul LaRoe, applicant, wants to subdivide his 10-acre lot into three additional lots. He plans a 
shared driveway culminating in a cul-de-sac for two of the lots and a private drive extending 
from the cul-de-sac to the third lot.  The shared drive is 1,000 feet long from Wylie to the 
center of the cul-de-sac. Beyond the current driveway pavement to his home, the shared 
driveway will be stone or gravel. 

 
Open Public Comment: 7:42 pm 
Ron Trella, 9058 Lotie Lane, Dexter MI       (email to Director of Planning and Zoning) 

Page 29 of 92



Dexter Township   June 23, 2020 
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes  Page 2 of 3 
 

Documents regarding the agenda items can be obtained at the Township hall during normal business hours, 
the Townships website: www.dextertownship.org and can be viewed on ew.livestream.com/dextertownship.org. 

He conveys full support for the rezoning of the property, stating: This property and the 
surrounding properties have really not been agricultural properties for years now, and will 
never be used for agriculture land in the future. The rezoning should have little to no effect on 
the area, will fit well into the existing neighborhood, and thereby it’s only fitting that this area 
all be rezoned Rural Residential. 

 
Bonnie Arnett, 4686 Wylie Road, Dexter MI       (participant in virtual meeting) 
Her concerns were setting a precedent for developing the neighboring 10-acre parcels and the 
additional traffic on Wylie Road created by additional homes. 
Close Public Comment:  7:47pm 

 
Planning Commission Review: 
Shared driveway and length thereof.  Passing flares. Cul de sac and private drive at the end.  
Width of right of way for this shared driveway.  Surface of shared driveway, paved or gravel. 
Future zoning & land use map. Setting a precedent for the neighboring 10-acre parcels. 
Existing and future land use of these parcels will not be agricultural. 

Moved by Mr. Lewis, seconded by Mr. Straub, to approve the Resolution for a Zoning Map 

Amendment from (AG) Agriculture to (RR) Rural Residential for (20-PC-202) LaRoe, 4585 

Wylie Road, Dexter, MI. 

Roll Call Vote: Yeas-Nester, Hurd, Lewis, Straub, Burch; Nays-Reiser, Gajewski; 
Absent-none.  Motion carried 5-2. 

7.  Approval of Planning Commission Minutes:   
     With no corrections or additions, Mr. Burch declared the minutes of April 28, 2020 approved  
     as presented. 
 
8.  Election of Officers: No action  

9.  Township Board of Trustees Update: 
Bill Gajewski, Township Board Representative gave a report on the May 19th and June 16th 
regular Township Board Meetings and the June 10th special Township Board Meeting. 

10. Concerns of Commission Members, Director of Planning and Zoning, Supervisor, and 
      Recording Secretary:  
   Reiser: Questioned if the Guenther development of the Doletzky property would be hooked 
   up to the Multi Lakes Water and Sewer.  DPZ Rohr said no. 
   Supervisor Rider:  Summarized office hours open to the public with lobby closed.  PC 
   meeting July 14th would be virtual.  Thanked Mike Compton for helping Paul LaRoe connect  
   to tonight’s virtual meeting. 
   Rohr:  Noted the July 14th PC working session to review the draft Zoning Ordinance and the 
   July 28th PC meeting as a Public Hearing on the draft Zoning Ordinance. 
 
11.  Review of Bylaws: No action 

Page 30 of 92



Dexter Township   June 23, 2020 
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes  Page 3 of 3 
 

Documents regarding the agenda items can be obtained at the Township hall during normal business hours, 
the Townships website: www.dextertownship.org and can be viewed on ew.livestream.com/dextertownship.org. 

 

 

12.  Public Comment: None.  

13.  Future Agenda Items:  July 14, 2020 
 A)  Work session to review consultant McKenna draft Zoning Ordinance.  

      
14.  Adjournment: Mr. Burch declared meeting adjourned at 8:11 PM.  
 
 
 
 

Respectfully submitted,  

 

 

 

  

Tom Lewis, Secretary  Janis Miller, Recording Secretary 
 

 

Page 31 of 92



This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Page 32 of 92



Dexter Township Planning Commission 

Resolution for a Zoning Map Amendment from  

Agriculture (AG) to Rural Residential (RR) 

(20-PC-202) LaRoe 

 Page 1 of 3 

A resolution to grant approval of a FAVORABLE RECOMMENDATION of an 
application submitted by Paul LaRoe and Terry Keppler for property owned & located 
at 4585 Wylie Rd., Section 36 of Dexter Township (D-04-36-200-003). 

10) WHEREAS, the above property has been zoned Agriculture (AG), or the equivalent, since at least 

2002; and 

20) WHEREAS, Paul LaRoe, pursuant to the provisions of the Dexter Township Zoning Ordinance, 

submitted a complete application for a zoning map amendment on June 1, 2020, for a change from 

Agriculture (AG) to Rural Residential (RR); and 

30) WHEREAS, Article 5 of the Dexter Township Zoning Ordinance outlines the zoning map 

amendment process; and 

40) WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has received a report from David Rohr (Dexter Township 

Director of Planning and Zoning) dated June 3, 2020; and 

50) WHEREAS, the applicant has indicated he wishes to submit a land division application in order to 

split the parcel into three separate parcels; and 

60) WHEREAS, the Planning Commission, at its June 23, 2020, meeting, held a duly-noticed public 

hearing on the zoning map amendment (20-PC-202) LaRoe; and 

70) WHEREAS, the proposed single-family house uses is consistent with the intent of the proposed 

Rural Residential (RR) District; and  

80) WHEREAS, the proposed zoning map amendment would not negatively impact the ability of the 

Township or other agencies to provide adequate public services or facilities because there will be no 

significant increase in the demand for public services or facilities; and 

90) WHEREAS, the proposed zoning map amendment would not adversely affect environmental 

conditions or the value of the surrounding property; and 

 

Page 33 of 92



Dexter Township Planning Commission 

Resolution for a Zoning Map Amendment from  

Agriculture (AG) to Rural Residential (RR) 

(20-PC-202) LaRoe 

 Page 2 of 3 

100) WHEREAS, the proposed zoning map amendment would not deviate from the Future Land Use Map 

of the Dexter Township Master Plan (2011), and 

110)  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Dexter Township Planning Commission, by a 

majority vote at a regularly-scheduled and duly-noticed meeting, held this 23rd day of June 2020, 

grants a FAVORABLE RECOMMENDATION of the Zoning Map Amendment (20-PC-202) 

LaRoe, 4585 Wylie Rd., Section 36 of Dexter Township, (D-04-36-200-003), to Paul LaRoe, for a 

zoning map amendment from Agriculture (AG) to Rural Residential (RR); and 

120)  BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Planning Commission directs the Director of Planning and 

Zoning to forward this Resolution/Findings-of-Facts, a summary of comments received at the public 

hearing, and its FAVORABLE RECOMMENDATION to the Dexter Township Board of Trustees 

within sixty (60) days. 

 

 

 

 

Resolution offered by Planning Commissioner   Lewis. 

Resolution supported by Planning Commissioner   Straub. 

 

 

YES =   Nester, Hurd, Lewis, Straub, Burch, 

NO =   Reiser, Gajewski 

ABSENT =   NONE 

Page 34 of 92



Dexter Township Planning Commission 

Resolution for a Zoning Map Amendment from  

Agriculture (AG) to Rural Residential (RR) 

(20-PC-202) LaRoe 

 Page 3 of 3 

ABSTAIN =   NONE 

The Chair declared the resolution ADOPTED. 

Date: 23 June 2020 

 

 

_______________________________  _______________________________ 

Steve Burch, Chair  Date   Tom Lewis, Secretary Date 

 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Paul LaRoe, Applicant Date  

 

Page 35 of 92



Addendum 

Dexter Township Planning Commission 

Resolution for a Zoning Map Amendment from  

Agriculture (AG) to Rural Residential (RR) 

(20-PC-202) LaRoe 
 

120)  BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Planning Commission directs the Director of Planning and 

Zoning to forward this Resolution/Findings-of-Facts, a summary of comments received at the public 

hearing, and its FAVORABLE RECOMMENDATION to the Dexter Township Board of Trustees 

within sixty (60) days. 

 

Open Public Comment: 7:42 pm 
 
Ron Trella, 9058 Lotie Lane, Dexter MI       (email to Director of Planning and Zoning) 
He conveys full support for the rezoning of the property, stating: This property and the 
surrounding properties have really not been agricultural properties for years now, and will 

never be used for agriculture land in the future. The rezoning should have little to no effect 
on the area, will fit well into the existing neighborhood, and thereby it’s only fitting that this 

area all be rezoned Rural Residential. 

 

Bonnie Arnett, 4686 Wylie Road, Dexter MI       (participant in virtual meeting) 

Her concerns were setting a precedent for developing the neighboring 10-acre parcels and 

the additional traffic on Wylie Road created by additional homes. 

Close Public Comment:  7:47pm 
 

Page 36 of 92



 

 

DEXTER TOWNSHIP RESOLUTION # 20-XXX 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 34-19 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE 2003 DEXTER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE, ORDINANCE 
NO. 34, TO AMEND THE ZONING CLASSIFICATION OF PARCEL D-04-36-200-003, 4585 WYLIE 
ROAD, FROM AGRICULTURAL (AG) TO RURAL RESIDENTIAL (RR). 
 
THE TOWNSHIP OF DEXTER ORDAINS: 
 

Section 1. 
The DEXTER TOWNSHIP 2003 ZONING ORDINANCE is amended by amending the zoning 
classification of parcel D-04-36-200-003, 4585 Wylie Road, from Agricultural (AG Rural Residential 
(RR). 
 

***** 
 
STATE OF MICHIGAN 
COUNTY of WASHTENAW 
 

I, DEBRA A. CEO, Clerk of the Township of Dexter, a Michigan Township Corporation, do hereby certify 
that at a regular meeting of the Dexter Township Board, held at the Dexter Town Hall, 6880 Dexter-
Pinckney Road, Dexter, Michigan 48130, in said Township at 7:00 p.m., Eastern Daylight Time, on the 
21st day of July 2020, that the above Ordinance was adopted after Public Hearing and Favorable 
Recommendation by the Dexter Township Planning Commission and that the following members were 
present: 
 

Harley Rider, Supervisor; Debra Ceo, Clerk; Libby Brushaber, Treasurer; Michael Compton, James 
Drolett, Bill Gajewski, Mark Mesko, Trustees. 
 

That upon motion made by ___________ and seconded by __________, said Ordinance was adopted 
on the following roll call vote: 
 

     AYES = ?  (names) 
   
   NAYES = ? (names) 
 
 ABSENT = ? (names) 
 

I further certify that on the 2nd day of August 2020, I caused a true copy of said Ordinance amendment to 
be published in the Ann Arbor News, a newspaper circulated in the Township of Dexter, and that said 
Ordinance and the record of publication was duly recorded in the Book of Ordinances of the Township of 
Dexter and is available for public use and inspection at the offices of the Dexter Township Clerk, 6880 
Dexter-Pinckney Road, Dexter, Michigan 48130 from 8:30 a.m. to 4:30 p.m. Monday-Thursday by 
appointment. 
 
 
              

           DEBRA A. CEO 
Dated: July 21, 2020 
Publish: August 2, 2020 
Effective Date: September 2, 2020 

Page 37 of 92



This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Page 38 of 92



 

  

  DEXTER TOWNSHIP  

  AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 
MEETING OF: Township Board of Trustees 21 July 2020 
Agenda Item Title: 
Amendment to Ordinance Number 3-A – Silver Lake Boating Hours 

Submitted by: 
H. Rider 

Explanation of Agenda Item: 
 

An amendment to Ordinance No. 3-A to allow for adjustment in hours in accordance with current 
DNR rules. 

Fiscal or Resource Considerations:       YES  _____  NO  ___x__ 
Does this agenda item require the expenditure of funds?    YES  _____   NO  __x___ 
If YES, are funds budgeted?   YES  _____   NO  _____ 
Are staff or other resources required?   YES  _____  NO __x___ 
Is a budget amendment required?   YES  _____  NO __x___  
 

Attachments:  

• MDNR Rule 281.700.3 

• Draft Resolution for enactment of Amendment to Ordinance Number 3-A 

• Draft Amendment to Ordinance Number 3-A 

Staff Comments: 
 

On February 18, 2020, the Township Board approved Resolution 20-563 to ask the MDNR to adjust 
the boating hours on Silver Lake to accommodate Daylight Saving Time. This resolution was 
forwarded to the DNR Law Division for action on our request.  
 

I was recently informed by a DNR officer that the MDNR had enacted a rule that did accommodate 
Daylight Saving Time. Apparently, the initial contacts at DNR weren’t aware of that rule, nor were 
Sheriff’s Marine Division personnel.  
 

Legal counsel has drafted an amendment to Ordinance Number 3-A to reflect the DNR Daylight Saving 
Time rules. In addition, I asked legal counsel to make the ordinance a Civil Infraction, rather than a 
misdemeanor. NOTE: In the near future I will be providing amendments to our other boating 
ordinances to change them to Civil Infractions. 
 

Motion/Action/Recommendation: 
 

Option 1 – Motion to approve Resolution 20-xxx, A resolution to enact an ordinance to amend the 
Boating Control, Big Silver Lake, Washtenaw/Livingston Counties Ordinance, Dexter Township 
Ordinance Number 3-A, to add the Department of Natural Resources language regarding Daylight 
Saving Time and to change violations to a civil infraction. 
 

Option 2 – Motion (other) 
 

Page 39 of 92



R 281.700.3 High-speed boating and water skiing prohibited; time. 

Rule 3. (1) On the waters of this state where special local watercraft controls have been 
established prohibiting high-speed boating and water skiing from 6:30 p.m. to 10:00 a.m. of the 
following day, the hours shall be 7:30 p.m. to 11:00 a.m. of the following day when and where 
eastern daylight saving time is in effect. 

(2) "Daylight saving time" means the advancing of the standard time by 1 hour, commencing at 2 
o'clock antemeridian on the second Sunday of March of each year and ending at 2 o'clock 
antemeridian on the first Sunday of November of each year in conformity with the federal 
uniform time act of 1966, as amended by the energy policy act of 2005.    

History:  1979 AC; 2016 AACS. 

Page 40 of 92



Dexter Township Resolution # 20-xxx 
 

A resolution to enact an ordinance to amend the Boating Control, Big Silver Lake, 
Washtenaw/Livingston Counties Ordinance to add the Department of Natural Resources 
language regarding Daylight Saving Time and to change violations to a civil infraction. 

WHEREAS, Dexter Township Ordinance Number 3-A, adopted in June, 1965, prohibits “high speed” 
boating on Silver Lake between the hours of 6:30 PM and 10:00 AM, and; 

WHEREAS, the stated operational hours on Silver Lake did not consider Daylight Saving Time, and; 

WHEREAS, on February 18, 2020, the Dexter Township Board approved Resolution 20-563 to 
request that the Michigan Department of Natural Resources (MDNR) revise its rules to accommodate 
Daylight Saving Time, and; 

WHEREAS, the MDNR Rules have been modified to accommodate Daylight Saving Time, and; 

WHEREAS, it is appropriate to amend the Township Ordinance for Silver Lake to reflect the MDNR 
rule, and; 

WHEREAS, it is also appropriate to amend Ordinance Number 3-A to change the penalty from a 
misdemeanor to a civil infraction: 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Dexter Township Board, by a vote of the 
majority at a regularly scheduled and duly noticed meeting held this 21st day of July, 2020, amends 
Dexter Township Ordinance Number 3-A to reflect the MDNR rule that accommodates Daylight 
Saving Time, and to change the penalty for violation of the ordinance from a misdemeanor to a civil 
infraction with a $100 fine, and; 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Township Clerk shall cause the Amendment to be 
published in the Ann Arbor News on August 2, 2020. 

Resolution offered by Board Member ? 

Resolution seconded by Board Member ? 
Roll call vote: YES NO ABSENT ABSTAIN 
Supervisor Rider _____ _____ _____ _____ 
Clerk Ceo _____ _____ _____ _____ 
Treasurer Brushaber _____ _____ _____ _____ 
Trustee Compton _____ _____ _____ _____ 
Trustee Drolett _____ _____ _____ _____ 
Trustee Gajewski _____ _____ _____ _____ 
Trustee Mesko _____ _____ _____ _____ 
Tally Y = ?; N = ?; Abstain = 0; Absent = ?. 

The Supervisor declared the resolution adopted 

CERTIFICATE 
The undersigned, being the duly elected and acting Clerk of the Township of Dexter hereby certifies that the 
foregoing resolution was adopted at a regular meeting of the Dexter Township Board at which a quorum was present 
on the 21st day of July, 2020, and that the members voted thereon as hereinbefore set forth. 

 
____________________ 
Debra A. Ceo, Clerk 

Page 41 of 92



DEXTER TOWNSHIP ORDINANCE NUMBER 3-A(1) 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE BOATING CONTROL, BIG SILVER LAKE, 
WASTHENAW/LIVINGSTON COUNTIES ORDINANCE TO ADD THE DEPARTMENT OF 
NATURAL RESOURCES LANGUAGE REGARDING DAYLIGHT SAVING TIME AND TO 
CHANGE VIOLATIONS TO A CIVIL INFRACTION 

THE TOWNSHIP OF DEXTER ORDAINS: 
SECTION I 

On the waters of Big Silver Lake, Township of Dexter, County of Washtenaw/Township 
of Putnam, County of Livingston, State of Michigan, no operator of any motor boat shall, during 
the period form 6:30 pm to 10:00 am of the following day (the hours should be 7:30 p.m. to 
11:00 a.m. of the following day when Eastern Daylight Savings Time is in effect);  

A. Operate such motorboat at high speed, or 

B. Have in tow or shall otherwise assist in the propulsion of a person on water skis, 
water sled, surfboard, or other similar contrivance. 

On the waters of Big Silver Lake, Township of Dexter, Washtenaw/Township of Putman, 
County of Livingston, State of Michigan, persons operating vessels shall maintain a distance of 
200 feet from the shoreline and a distance of 100 feet from any raft, buoyed or occupied 
bathing area, or vessel moored or at anchor, except when proceeding at a ‘slow-no-wake’ 
speed and except when engaged in picking up or dropping off water skiers, so long as such 
operation is otherwise conducted with due regard to the safety of persons and property and in 
line perpendicular to the shoreline and in accordance with the laws of this State. 

Any person, or other entity who violates the provisions of this ordinance shall be 
responsible for a civil infraction of $100.00 for each offense. 

 
Certification Of Adoption 

STATE OF MICHIGAN 
COUNTY OF WASHTENAW 

I, Debra A. Ceo, Clerk of the Township of Dexter, do hereby certify that the forgoing 
Ordinance was adopted by a roll call vote of the Township Board on the 21st day of July, 2020, 
and the members thereof voted as follows: 

AYES  ? 

NAYES  ? 

and that upon order of the Township Board, I have caused the same to be published and enrolled 
in the Ordinances of the Township of Dexter, as provided by law, and published in a newspaper 
of general circulation in Washtenaw County as stated below: 

ADOPTED:  JULY 21, 2020 

PUBLISHED:  AUGUST 2, 2020 

EFFECTIVE:  AUGUST 3, 2020 

 
__________________________ 
DEBRA A, CEO 
Clerk of the Township of Dexter 

Page 42 of 92



 

  

  DEXTER TOWNSHIP  

  AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 
MEETING OF: Township Board of Trustees 21 July 2020 
Agenda Item Title: 
Ordinance Number 41 – Local regulation of the possession and use of consumer fireworks. 

Submitted by: 
H. Rider 

Explanation of Agenda Item: 
 

A new ordinance that prohibits possession and use of consumer fireworks in Dexter Township except 
on certain days/times as specified by state law. 

Fiscal or Resource Considerations:       YES  _____  NO  ___x__ 
Does this agenda item require the expenditure of funds?    YES  _____   NO  __x___ 
If YES, are funds budgeted?   YES  _____   NO  _____ 
Are staff or other resources required?   YES  _____  NO __x___ 
Is a budget amendment required?   YES  _____  NO __x___  
 

Attachments:  

• MCL 28.457 

• Draft Resolution for enactment of Ordinance Number 41 

• Draft Ordinance Number 41 

Staff Comments: 
 

Michigan statutes permit the possession and use of certain consumer fireworks. The statue permits 
local units of government to restrict the possession and use of said fireworks, except on certain days 
and times as specified in the statute. 
 

The Sheriff’s Lieutenant for the Western District expressed concern that Dexter Township is the only 
municipality that doesn’t have an ordinance regulating fireworks. Therefore, Sheriff’s personnel are 
unable to prohibit the use and possession of consumer fireworks in Dexter Township at any time. It 
was suggested that it would be beneficial to public safety for all local units of government to have 
similar ordinances that would prohibit possession and use of consumer fireworks, except on the days 
and times stated in the statute. 
 

Legal counsel has drafted the attached ordinance in accordance with the statute. 
 

Motion/Action/Recommendation: 
 

Option 1 – Motion to approve Resolution 20-xxx, a resolution to enact an Ordinance to Regulate the 
Possession and use of Fireworks to the Extent Permitted by the Michigan Fireworks Safety Act, MCL 
28.451 et seq.  
 

Option 2 – Motion (other) 
 

Page 43 of 92



28.457 Local ordinances. 

Sec. 7. (1) Except as provided in this act, a local unit of government shall not enact or enforce an 
ordinance, code, or regulation pertaining to or in any manner regulating the sale, display, storage, 
transportation, or distribution of fireworks regulated under this act. 

(2) A local unit of government may enact an ordinance regulating the ignition, discharge, and use of 
consumer fireworks, including, but not limited to, an ordinance prescribing the hours of the day or night 
during which a person may ignite, discharge, or use consumer fireworks. If a local unit of government 
enacts an ordinance under this subsection, the ordinance shall not regulate the ignition, discharge, or 
use of consumer fireworks on the following days after 11 a.m.: 

(a) December 31 until 1 a.m. on January 1. 

(b) The Saturday and Sunday immediately preceding Memorial Day until 11:45 p.m. on each of those days. 

(c) June 29 to July 4 until 11:45 p.m. on each of those days. 

(d) July 5, if that date is a Friday or Saturday, until 11:45 p.m. 

(e) The Saturday and Sunday immediately preceding Labor Day until 11:45 p.m. on each of those days. 

(3) An ordinance under subsection (2) shall impose a civil fine of $1,000.00 for each violation of the 
ordinance and no other fine or sanction. The ordinance must provide for the remittance of $500.00 of 
the fine collected under the ordinance to the local law enforcement agency responsible for enforcing 
the ordinance. 

(4) Beginning August 1, 2019, a local unit of government with a population of 100,000 or more or a local 
unit of government located in a county with a population of 750,000 or more may enact or enforce an 
ordinance that regulates the use of a temporary structure. An ordinance established under this 
subsection may include, but is not limited to, a restriction on the number of permits issued for a 
temporary structure, regulation of the distance required between 2 or more temporary structures, or a 
zoning ordinance that regulates the use of a temporary structure. An ordinance established under this 
subsection may not prohibit the temporary storage, transportation, or distribution of fireworks by a 
consumer fireworks certificate holder at a retail location that is a permanent building or structure. As 
used in this subsection, "temporary structure" means a movable structure that is used in the sale, 
display, storage, transportation, or distribution of fireworks, including, but not limited to, a tent or a 
stand. 

History: 2011, Act 256, Eff. Jan. 1, 2012;¾Am. 2013, Act 65, Imd. Eff. June 19, 2013;¾Am. 2018, Act 635, Imd. Eff. Dec. 28, 2018. 

Page 44 of 92



Dexter Township Resolution # 20-xxx 
 

An Ordinance to Regulate the Possession and use of Fireworks to the Extent Permitted by 
the Michigan Fireworks Safety Act, MCL 28.451 et seq.  

WHEREAS, Michigan Statutes permit local municipalities to regulate and/or prohibit the possession 
and use of consumer fireworks except on certain states, and; 

WHEREAS, absent such local control as defined by local ordinance, law enforcement officers have 
no authority to prohibit use and possession of consumer fireworks throughout the year in said 
municipality, and; 

WHEREAS, the Dexter Township Board of Trustees deems it in the public interest to prohibit 
possession and use of consumer fireworks at times other than required by statute: 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Dexter Township Board, by a vote of the 
majority at a regularly scheduled and duly noticed meeting held this 21st day of July, 2020, enacts 
Ordinance Number 41 to promote the safety and well-being of the residents of Dexter Township, and; 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Township Clerk shall cause the Amendment to be 
published in the Ann Arbor News on August 2, 2020. 

Resolution offered by Board Member ? 

Resolution seconded by Board Member ? 
Roll call vote: YES NO ABSENT ABSTAIN 
Supervisor Rider _____ _____ _____ _____ 
Clerk Ceo _____ _____ _____ _____ 
Treasurer Brushaber _____ _____ _____ _____ 
Trustee Compton _____ _____ _____ _____ 
Trustee Drolett _____ _____ _____ _____ 
Trustee Gajewski _____ _____ _____ _____ 
Trustee Mesko _____ _____ _____ _____ 
Tally Y = ?; N = ?; Abstain = 0; Absent = ?. 

The Supervisor declared the resolution adopted 

CERTIFICATE 
The undersigned, being the duly elected and acting Clerk of the Township of Dexter hereby certifies that the 
foregoing resolution was adopted at a regular meeting of the Dexter Township Board at which a quorum was present 
on the 21st day of July, 2020, and that the members voted thereon as hereinbefore set forth. 

 
____________________ 
Debra A. Ceo, Clerk 

Page 45 of 92



 
 

 
TOWNSHIP OF DEXTER 

COUNTY OF WASHTENAW, STATE OF MICHIGAN 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 41 
 
AN ORDINANCE TO REGULATE THE POSSESSION AND USE OF FIREWORKS TO 
THE EXTENT PERMITTED BY THE MICHIGAN FIREWORKS SAFETY ACT, MCL 
28.451 ET SEQ.  
 
THE TOWNSHIP OF DEXTER ORDAINS: 

Section 1. Definitions. 
The following words and phrases, when used in this chapter, shall have the meanings 
respectively ascribed to them: 

ALCOHOLIC LIQUOR 

That term as defined in section 1d of the Michigan Vehicle Code, being Public 

Act No. 300 of 1949 (MCL 257.1, et seq.). 

APA STANDARD 87-1 

2001 APA Standard 87-1, standard for construction and approval for transportation of 
fireworks, novelties, and theatrical pyrotechnics, as published by the American 
Pyrotechnics Association of Bethesda, Maryland. 

CONSUMER FIREWORKS 

Fireworks that are designed to produce visible effects by combustion, that are required to 
comply with the construction, chemical composition, and labeling regulations 
promulgated by the United States Consumer Product Safety Commission under 16 CFR 
parts 1500 and 1507, as amended, and that are listed in APA Standard 87- 1: 3.1.2, 3.1.3, 
or 3.5. Consumer fireworks do not include low-impact fireworks. 

CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE 

That term as defined in section 8b of the Michigan Vehicle Code, being Public 

Act No. 300 of 1949 (MCL 257.1, et seq.). 

FIREWORKS 

Any composition or device, except a starting pistol, a flare gun, or a flare, designed for 
the purpose of producing visible or audible effect by combustion, deflagration, or 
detonation. 

LOW-IMPACT FIREWORKS 

Ground and handheld sparkling  devices  as  that  phrase  is  defined  in  APA 

standard 87-1: 3.1, 3.1.1.1 to 3.1.1.8, and 3.5.

Page 46 of 92



MINOR 

An individual who is less than 18 years of age. 

Section 2. Ignition, discharge, and use of consumer fireworks. 
A. Except as provided in this Section, a person shall not ignite, discharge, or use consumer 
fireworks at any time. 

B. A person may ignite, discharge, or use consumer fireworks on the following days during the 
following hours: 

1.   Between 11:00 a.m. on December 31 and 1:00 a.m. on the immediately following 
January 1. 

2.   Between 11:00 a.m. and 11:45 p.m. on the Saturday immediately preceding Memorial 
Day. 

3.  Between 11:00 a.m. and 11:45 p.m. on the Sunday immediately preceding Memorial 
Day. 

4.   Between 11:00 a.m. and 11:45 p.m. on June 29, June 30, July 1, July 2, July 3 and July 4. 

5.  Between 11:00 a.m. and 11:45 p.m. on July 5, if that date is a Friday or a Saturday. 

6.  Between 11:00 a.m. and 11:45 p.m. on the Saturday immediately preceding Labor Day. 

7.  Between 11:00 a.m. and 11:45 p.m. on the Sunday immediately preceding Labor 
Day. 

C.   A person shall not ignite, discharge, or use consumer fireworks if the environmental 
concerns based on the department of natural resources fire division criteria are elevated to 
extreme fire conditions or if the environmental concerns based on the department of natural 
resources, fire division criteria are elevated to very high for 72 consecutive hours and the 
commanding officer of the fire department, in consultation with the department of natural 
resources, enforces a no burning restriction that includes a ban on the ignition, discharge, and 
use of consumer fireworks.  If a no burning restriction is instituted under this section, the 
commanding officer of the fire department enforcing the restriction shall ensure that adequate 
notice of the restriction is provided to the public. 

Section 3. Possession of consumer fireworks by a minor. 
A minor shall not possess, ignite, discharge, or use consumer fireworks. 

Section 4. Prohibited conduct. 
A. A person shall not ignite, discharge, or use consumer fireworks on public property, 

school property, church property, or the property of any another person without that 
organization’s or person's express permission to use those consumer fireworks on 
those premises. 

B.       A person shall not use consumer fireworks or low-impact fireworks while under 
the influence of alcoholic liquor, a controlled substance, or a combination thereof. 

Section 5. Determination of violation; seizure. 
A. If a law enforcement officer determines that a violation of this chapter has occurred, 

the officer may seize the consumer fireworks as evidence of the violation. The evidence 
seized shall be stored pending disposition of any proceedings arising from the violation. 

Page 47 of 92



B. Following a final disposition of an appeal of a finding of responsibility under this 
Ordinance that affirms the finding, the Township may dispose of or destroy any fireworks 
retained as evidence in that proceeding. 

C. A person from whom fireworks are seized under this Ordinance shall pay the actual costs 
of storage and disposal of the seized fireworks if found responsible for a violation of this 
article.  

Section 6. Local, state, and federal requirements. 
Nothing contained within this chapter shall be construed to relieve a person of any duties and 
obligations imposed under any local, state, or federal laws, rules, regulations, licenses, or permit 
requirements. 

Section 7. Penalty. 
Any person violating the provisions of this chapter shall be responsible for a municipal civil 
infraction with a civil fine of $1,000.00 for each violation of the article.   

Section 8. Severability. 
This Ordinance and each of the various parts, sections, subsections, sentences, phrases, and clauses 
hereof are declared to be severable.  If any part, section, subsection, sentence, phrase, or clause is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, it is hereby provided 
that the remainder of the Ordinance shall not be affected thereby and shall remain in full force and 
effect. 

Certification Of Adoption 
STATE OF MICHIGAN 
COUNTY OF WASHTENAW 

I, Debra A. Ceo, Clerk of the Township of Dexter, do hereby certify that the forgoing 
Ordinance was adopted by a roll call vote of the Township Board on the 21st day of July, 2020, and 
the members thereof voted as follows: 

AYES  ? 

NAYES  ? 

and that upon order of the Township Board, I have caused the same to be published and enrolled in 
the Ordinances of the Township of Dexter, as provided by law, and published in a newspaper of 
general circulation in Washtenaw County as stated below: 

ADOPTED:  JULY 21, 2020 

PUBLISHED:  AUGUST 2, 2020 

EFFECTIVE:  AUGUST 3, 2020 

 
__________________________ 
DEBRA A, CEO 
Clerk of the Township of Dexter 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 48 of 92



 

  

  DEXTER TOWNSHIP  

  AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 
MEETING OF: Township Board of Trustees 21 July 2020 
Agenda Item Title: 
Township Welcome Signs 

Submitted by: 
H. Rider 

Explanation of Agenda Item: 
 

Request for approval to order and facilitate the installation of new “Welcome” signs at entrance 
points to Dexter Township. 

Fiscal or Resource Considerations:       YES  __x___  NO  _____ 
Does this agenda item require the expenditure of funds?    YES  ___x__   NO  _____ 
If YES, are funds budgeted?   YES  __x___   NO  _____ 
Are staff or other resources required?   YES  _____  NO __x___ 
Is a budget amendment required?   YES  _____  NO __x___  
 

Attachments:  

• Photo of proposed “Welcome” signs 

• Quote from WCRC 

Staff Comments: 
 

There are 16 main entrance points into Dexter Township – more if border roads are counted. Many of 
those points don’t have any acknowledgement of the Township boundary, others have generic signs 
that are in poor condition and don’t project a favorable image of Dexter Township. The Road 
Commission has installed a few newer generic signs, but they don’t project an image of the unique 
nature of the Township. 
 

The FY 2020/2021 Budget includes $5,000 for new “Welcome” signs. The attached image has the 
characteristic of the signs that once welcomed folks to Dexter Township, with an updated design.  
 

The Road Commission installs signs – at a cost to the Township. They also have standards for signs on 
public roads and use a contractor to make the signs. They recently changed contractors, so they are 
updating the attached quote. Some of the signs may be able to be installed on existing posts, others 
may require new posts. The attached quote is based on all new posts. 
 

This request is for 18 new signs, two of which would remain as spares in case of damage. It also 
provides for a potential increase in cost with the new WCRC vendor. 
 

Motion/Action/Recommendation: 
 

Option 1 – Motion to approve 18 new “Welcome” signs for Dexter Township, based on the attached 
image, and installation of 16 signs, utilizing existing posts when practical, at a cost not to exceed 
$4,000. 
 

Option 2 – Motion to (other) 
 

Page 49 of 92



This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Page 50 of 92



Page 51 of 92



TWP: Dexter (519-029004) 03/02/2020

CODE MATERIAL UNIT COST EST. COST

I2-2A Welcome To Dexter Township 18 ea. $30.00 $540.00

*After agreement, signs will be ordered with estimated 45 day delivery

07704013 13' U-Channel Posts 18 ea. $24.00 $432.00

TOTAL MATERIAL COST $972.00

EST. HOURS EST. COST

9 $900.00

2 $150.00

4 $200.00

TOTAL LABOR COST $1,250.00

EST. HOURS EST. COST

9 $405.00

4 $60.00

TOTAL EQUIPMENT COST $465.00
OTHER COST

*Labor and Equipment costs is an estimated.  Time would depend on actual locations. SUB-TOTAL $2,687.00

OVERHEAD $537.40

$3,224.40

$45.00SIGN TRUCK

EQUIPMENT COSTS

PICKUP $15.00

EQUIPMENT COSTS RATE HOUR

FINAL TOTAL ESTIMATED COST

$100.00SIGN TECHNICIANS (2)

SIGN FABRICATOR $50.00

$75.00SUPERVISION, FOREMAN

COST ESTIMATION FOR SIGN INSTALLATION AT
LOCATION:  Welcome To Dexter Township - Various Locations

LABOR COSTS

QUANTITY

MATERIAL COSTS

PERSONNEL RATE HOUR

Page 52 of 92



Authorization of Payments 

First Distribution – July 14, 2020  

 

T:\clerk1\My Documents\00 Board Packet Items\2020\2020 07\2020 06 09 Authorization of Payment 1.docx Printed 7/15/2020 @ 2:08:04 PM

   

Clerk’s 
Office 

Debra A Ceo, Clerk 
Authorization of Payments  

July 14, 2020 
First Distribution 

Attachment(s): 

1. July 2020 Payroll  

2. General Fund Disbursements – (06/17/2020 thru 07/14/2020) 

3. Fire Fund Disbursements – (06/17/2020 thru 07/14/2020) 

4. Police Fund Disbursements- None 

5. General Agency Fund Disbursements – (06/17/2020 thru 07/14/2020) 

July 
Gross Payroll 

$32,345.94 

   

Disbursements 
06/17/2020 thru 

07/14/2020 
 Grand Total 

General Fund $38,994.91 $ $38,994.91 

Fire Fund $68,523.81 $ $68,523.81 

Police Fund $0 $ $0 

Agency Fund $63,723.11 $ $63,723.11 

MLWSA Debt $0 $ $0 

    

Total $171,241.83 $ $171,241.83 

Page 53 of 92



This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Page 54 of 92



 

 

  Page 1 of 2 

COVID-19, Governor’s Executive Orders, Township Actions 
The Executive Team has continued to meet by phone and in person as necessary to review Township 
actions in accordance with directives from Lansing. Communication of these actions have been 
forwarded to Board members, PC Chair, ZBA Chair, and staff as necessary. The following actions 
have been taken: 
The Coronavirus Workplace Policy has been distributed to staff and officials.  
In accordance with the Board’s authority, the Executive Team has decided to resume normal office 
staffing, while still keeping the office closed to the public, except for necessary appointments  
Considering the Governor’s extension of the State Of Emergency (SOE), and with consideration for 
summer tax collection and preparations for the August Primary Election, the Executive Team 
anticipates keeping the office closed to the public during the SOE, but facilitating public interaction 
and document exchange in the vestibule. However, the lobby and polling place will be open for the 
August Primary Election. The cleaning contractor has been notified that thorough cleaning will be 
required after the election. 

Draft Zoning Ordinance Contract – Additional Meeting 
The Planning Commission met for more than three hours on July 14 to discuss the Draft Zoning 
Ordinance. Our contract with McKenna included one meeting with the PC. However, the PC only 
got through approximately half the draft during the meeting, thus necessitating another meeting with 
McKenna. The additional meeting will be an extra cost, though will still be within the overall budget. 
It is currently scheduled for the PC work session on August 11, 2020. 
I believe the PC discussion was fruitful and insightful. Some of the discussion involved questions as 
to why certain provisions were as they were – both those recommended by McKenna and those voted 
on by the Township Board. The PC didn’t make any recommendations for substantial changes on 
those. Other questions were generally clarification of terms and the intent of certain phrases, along 
with some cleaning up and consistency of language and terms.  
I anticipate the PC will be able to conclude their discussion on August 11th and then set a date for the 
Public Hearing. 

Sheriff’s Report 
There is no “pin map” included with the Sheriff’s report. The Sheriff’s Crime Analyst has left the 
department and they are changing software, so “pin maps” may or may not be a part of future reports. 

Meetings attended and/or scheduled, but cancelled 
06/17/2020 – WATS Policy Committee (Virtual) 
06/17/2020 – USDA Broadband Grant (Virtual) 
06/18/2020 – DAFD Administrative Board meeting (Virtual) 
06/20/2020 – Dexter Forum (Virtual) 
06/22/2020 – Meet Twp Landscape Contractor at Fire Sub-Station to discuss issues 

Dexter Township Board 
Supervisor’s Report 

21 July 2020 

Page 55 of 92



Supervisor’s Report  July 21, 2020 

T:\Supervisor\Reports\Supervisor Reports\2020\Sup Rpt 2020 07.docx Page 2 of 2 

06/23/2020 – WAVE Board – Cancelled 
06/23/2020 – Planning Commission (facilitate Zoom meeting) 
06/30/2020 – Meeting regarding Inverness Woods traffic (At Twp Office and by phone) 
07/01/2020 – Washtenaw Urban County Executive Committee - Cancelled 
07/04/2020 – Dexter Forum (Virtual) 
07/07/2020 – Zoning Board of Appeals (facilitate Zoom meeting) 
07/08/2020 – Election Commission meeting 
07/09/2020 – MLWSA Board (Virtual) 
07/14/2020 – Meet with resident and with Charter/Spectrum on Island Lake Rd 
07/14/2020 – Planning Commission (facilitate Zoom meeting) 
07/15/2020 – Meeting with Program Coordinator for Solarize Ann Arbor (Virtual) 
07/15/2020 – WATS Policy Committee - Cancelled 
07/16/2020 – DAFD Administrative Board meeting (Virtual) 
07/17/2020 – Facilitate meeting at Twp Hall with Senator Lana Theis 
07/18/2020 – Dexter Forum (Virtual) 

 

Respectfully submitted,  
Harley B. Rider, Supervisor 

Page 56 of 92



 

T:\clerk1\My Documents\Reports\Reports 2020\Clerk 2020 07.docx  
 

REPORT FOR THE MONTH OF JULY 2020 
BUDGET: 

➢ Target: 33.36 

➢ General Fund to date Revenue 18.28 Expenditures: 22.41 

➢ Fire Fund to date Revenue: 0.51  Expenditures: 32.84 

➢ Police Fund to date Revenue: 0.39  Expenditures: 23.94 

Budget printout available on request. 

QUALIFIED VOTER FILE: 
The Clerk’s office processed 69 voter registration during the June 2020; 21 new 
applications and 21 cancellations. 

MEETINGS AND TRAINING ATTENDED/TO BE ATTENDED: 

July 8, 2020 Election Commission meeting 

July 17, 2020 Election training 
________________________________________________________________________ 
INFORMATION:   
Candidates without political party affiliation seeking partisan offices file qualifying 
petitions and Affidavit of Identity for the November general election by July 16, 2020 at 
4:00 pm.  Withdrawal deadline elapses at 4:00 pm on July 20, 2020. 
 
Write-in candidates file Declaration of Intent forms for the August primary by 4:00 pm on 
July 24, 2020. 
 
Over 5,000 absentee ballot applications were sent to voters in our community with 1910 
ballots sent out as of July 15, 2020,  
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
Debra A. Ceo, Clerk 

DEBRA A. CEO, CLERK 

Page 57 of 92



This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Page 58 of 92



 

   

 

Attachments 

1. Fund Report Summary  

 

Summer 2020 tax bills were mailed out July 1st.  

 

Respectfully submitted,  

Libby Brushaber, Treasurer 

 

Dexter Township Board 
Treasurer’s Report 

For the Month of June  2020 

Page 59 of 92



To Date

General Fund (101)

Beg. Balance 3,436,307.46

Receipts 89,147.78

Disbursements 51,376.57

Ending Balance 3,474,078.67

Fire Fund (206)

Beg. Balance 1,105,968.33

Receipts 856.97

Disbursements 68,523.81

Ending Balance 1,038,301.49

Police Fund (207)

Beg. Balance 890,960.49

Receipts 522.08

Disbursements 40,414.50

Ending Balance 851,068.07

Multi-Lakes Sewer Enterprise Fund (569)

Beg. Balance 537,703.43

Receipts 755.42

Transfer Out to Debt Service Fund

Disbursements

Ending Balance 538,458.85

General Agency Fund (701)

Beg. Balance 119,705.96

Receipts 61,538.86

Disbursements 1,976.75

Ending Balance 179,268.07

Current Tax Collection (703)

Beg. Balance 3,622.67

Receipts

Disbursements

Ending balance . 3,622.67

Grand Total of All Funds 6,084,797.82

General Agency Checking Account 179,268.07

Municipal Investment Funds 1,844,132.14

Certificates of Deposit & Other Investments 4,061,397.61

Grand Total of All Funds 6,084,797.82

DEXTER TOWNSHIP

FUND REPORT AS OF JUNE 30, 2020

Current Month

Page 60 of 92



 

 

Dexter Township 

Planning & Zoning 
6880 Dexter-Pinckney Road 

Dexter, MI  48130 
Telephone: 734-426-3767 

DPZ@DexterTownship.org 

www.DexterTownship.org 

 

David Rohr 

Director of Planning & Zoning 

Paul Curtis 

Ordinance Officer 

 

    “ A   C o m m u n i t y    F o r    A l l    S e a s o n s ” 
 Planning & Zoning Report for June Activities - 2020 

 

Zoning Permits  

 
There were 12 new zoning permits issued this month (June)  
 
There were 8 zoning permits closed this month (June)   
 
 
Zoning Permits Issued & Closed- Year-to-Year by Month.  (All numbers are for June.) 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

14 15 13 15
19

22 20

32
35

27

12

4
1

17

8 8

15

58

25
22

15

8

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

New Closed

Page 61 of 92



 

 

Planning & Zoning Report 
June 2020 Activities 
Page 2 of 4 

Types of Zoning Permits Issued- (All zoning permits are for June.) 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

House Addition, 1

Exterior Remodel, 5

Deck, Porch, Patio, 4

Accessory Structure, 2

House Addition Exterior Remodel Deck, Porch, Patio Accessory Structure

Page 62 of 92



 

 

Planning & Zoning Report 
June 2020 Activities 
Page 3 of 4 

Code Enforcement 

 
There was 1 new complaint/violation this month (June)  
 
There were 0 complaints/violations closed this month (June)  
The number of new ordinance complaints/violations does not include the number of courtesy letters or letters of 
inquiry sent by the Ordinance Officer. 
 

 
 
There was 2 Blight Violations actively being rectified by violators. (June) 
 
There were 0 municipal civil infraction issued and 1 court appearance (June). 
 
 

 
 

List of new Complaints/Violations- (All new complaints/violations, June.) 
Violation 
Number Address Parcel # Description Status 

20-BV-200 14316 Eisenbeiser 04-18-300-020 Junk, blight Open 
20-BV-201 14356 Eisenbeiser 04-18-300-022 Junk, blight Open 
     
     

 
or of Planning & Zoning Note 

 

Director of planning notes 

 
Due to limitations placed on Township staff by Governor executive order(s), active code enforcement has been 
limited.  We hope to resume normal operations in and July and August.  

 

4

2

5

4

1

2

3

9

13

4

1

2

1

3

0 0

3

13

3

5

3

0
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

New Closed

Page 63 of 92



 

 

Planning & Zoning Report 
June 2020 Activities 
Page 4 of 4 

Planning Commission 

 
June Meeting: June Meeting 

The Planning Commission held one meeting in June.   
Petition Project Request/Description Result 

    

20-PC-202 4585 Wylie Rd. Rezone from Agriculture (AG) to Rural 
Residential (RR) 

Planning 
Commission 

recommended 
approval 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Zoning Board of Appeals 

 

June Meeting:  
 

Petition Project Request Result 
20-ZBA-882 Single family house Two (2) dimensional variances requested. Approved 
20-ZBA-880 New garage Eight (8) dimensional variances requested. 

 
Postponed to July 

ZBA meeting 
    

 

 
 

 
 

Page 64 of 92



Planning Commission 

6880 Dexter-Pinckney Road 

Dexter, MI 48130 

Telephone: 734-426-3767 

Fax: 734-426-3833 

www.dextertownship.org 

_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
DATE:     June 23, 2020,  
TO:          Dexter Township Board of Trustees 
RE:          Planning Commission Report 
                                 
Action Items: 
  

1. Rezoning Request (20-PC-202) 4585 Wylie Rd. (04-36-200-003)  

Rezone from Agricultural (AG) to Rural Residential (RR): 

Director of Planning & Zoning, Mr. David Rohr gave the PC an overview of this rezone request by 

applicants Paul LaRoe & Terri Keppler.  

The reason for change … was to allow applicant to acquire an additional land division on their 10-acre 

parcel i.e. to split their land into three parcels instead of only two. 

Ag zoning will only allow one dwelling unit per 5 acres.  However Rural Residential zoning will allow 3 

dwelling units i.e. one dwelling unit per 2 acres.    

The applicant received a letter of support for the zoning change from neighbor Ron Trella (phoenetic 

spelling). 

Public Hearing:  Bonnie Arnett & her husband were opposed to the zoning change.  Mrs. Arnett stated 

that Wylie Road already has a traffic congestion problem with all the subdivision homes.  She said she 

doesn’t want more homes that will cause more traffic and more accidents. 

After the Public Hearing Mr. Paul LaRoe had computer issues & was unable to unmute his computer.  

However, Trustee Compton went above & beyond and went to his nearby neighbor’s house to resolve 

the problem so that the PC could finish deliberations on the zoning change. The PC thanks Trustee 

Compton. 

The Board of Trustees (Legislative Body) has already reviewed this SIXTY ACRE BLOCK of Six narrow & 

long ‘bowling alley’ 10-acre parcels on Wylie and voted that it shall remain AG zoning with 5- acre 

minimum lot size, for the proposed ‘Official Zoning Map.’  Therefore, as Board Rep, I did not support 

approval by overruling the Board. 

These Land divisions have only 300’ of road frontage width by 1500’ deep. The Land Division Act (of 

3/31/97) banned these narrow & long bowling alley parcels created by the 1967 Subdivision Control Act. 

These narrow & long parcels make good development design more difficult but that’s an administrative 

issue. 

Page 65 of 92



If the Board approves this zoning change, should they consider changing all the parcels in this block to 

R/R because of the precedent set?    

The majority of the PC (5/2) felt the zoning change made sense.  The Planning Commission then 
moved to approve the resolution: 

Approve Resolution 20-PC-202 for a Zoning Map Amendment from Agriculture (AG) to Rural 

Residential (RR) for application submitted by Paul LaRoe and Terry Keppler for property owned, located 

at 4585 Wylie Rd., Section 36 of Dexter Township (D-04-36-200-003) with a FAVORABLE  

RECOMMENDATION to the Board of Trustees. (5/2 No Reiser, Gajewski) 

Respectfully Submitted, 
Bill Gajewski, Township Board Representative  

 

 

Page 66 of 92



 

 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 1 

                                           May 4, 2020 
  

 
 
 
     
 Dexter District Library Board of Trustees 
                      Meeting Minutes 
                         May 4, 2020 
                              7:00 p.m. 

 
Members Present:   Pat Cousins, Barbara Davenport, Cassy Korinek, Jim LaVoie                    
                                Donna Palmer, Rosemary Quigley, Sherry Simpson  
 
Members Absent:    Shelly Vrsek 
 
Others Present:        Paul McCann, Library Director 
           Kim Swoverland, Recording Secretary 
 
Due to State-wide “Stay Home; Stay Safe” orders, and the closure of the Library building to the 
public, this meeting was conducted through online video conferencing via Zoom.  Meeting 
details and instructions for joining the meeting were publicized on the Library’s website, as was 
the meeting agenda and Board packet.  President LaVoie called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
LaVoie called for additions/changes to the presented agenda.    Cousins moved to approve the 
agenda as presented.  Second by Quigley.  A roll call vote was taken.  Cousins=aye, 
Davenport=aye, Korinek=aye, LaVoie=aye, Palmer=aye, Quigley=aye, Simpson=aye, absent=1.  
Motion carried.    
   
LaVoie called for corrections to the minutes of the April 6, 2020 regular Board Meeting. No 
corrections were requested.  Davenport moved to approve the minutes from the April 6, 2020 
regular Board Meeting as presented.  Second by Palmer.  A roll call vote was taken.  
Cousins=aye, Davenport=aye, Korinek=aye, LaVoie=aye, Palmer=aye, Quigley=abstain, 
Simpson=aye, absent=1.  Motion carried. 
 
Public Comment:  None. 
 
Friends of the Library Report:   With the Library building being closed to everyone except 
essential staff, all book donations, book sales and Friends meetings are cancelled until further 
notice.  The Friends organization may be considered “on hiatus” until the coronavirus threat has 
subsided. 
 
Treasurer’s Report:  McCann presented the Treasurer’s report for April 2020.  Balance Sheets 
and Statements of Operation were provided for the months of March 2020 and April 2020 for 
both 101 General Operations and 301 Debt Service.  The paid bills for April 2020 were 
reviewed.  Palmer moved to approve the bills paid during the month of April 2020.  Second by 
Simpson.  A roll call vote was taken.  Cousins=aye, Davenport=aye, Korinek=aye, LaVoie=aye, 
Palmer=aye, Quigley=aye, Simpson=aye, absent=1.  Motion carried.   
 

Page 67 of 92



 

 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 2 

                                           May 4, 2020 
  

Michigan CLASS:  Statements for April 2020 were provided and reviewed.  Debt Service funds 
were transferred from Chelsea State Bank to the Debt Service account with MI CLASS and the 
May 1, 2020 Bond Payment was successfully paid directly from MI CLASS.   
 
Budget Changes: McCann noted the 101-901-970 Capital Outlay and Improvements budget line 
was in need of upward adjustment, but with projected income still exceeding expenses, the line 
could be increased without using fund balance.  Simpson moved to increase the budgeted 
balance of line 101-901-970 Capital Outlay and Improvements by $10,000.00 increasing that 
line’s budgeted balance from $31,000.00 to $41,000.00.  Second by Quigley.  A roll call vote 
was taken.  Cousins=aye, Davenport=aye, Korinek=aye, LaVoie=aye, Palmer=aye, Quigley=aye, 
Simpson=aye, absent=1.  Motion carried.    
 
Reimbursements:  None.  
   
Circulation Statistics:  Statistics for April 2020 include: 
 
April 2020  

Circulation Statistics April 
Adult Books 22 
Young Adult Books 12 
Children's Books 101 
Magazines 0 
DVD 8 
Books on CD 3 
Music CD 3 
Realia/Objects/Equip 0 
Overdrive 2752 
hoopla 2674 
RBDigital mag/audio 792 
Kanopy 851 
Renewals via web 114 
In-House 146 
Total 7478 
Library visits 0 
Reference questions 238 
Items withdrawn 0 
New items added 376 
Total holdings 112709 
New cards issued 87 
Total card holders 11299 
Internet usage 39 
Museum/Park Pass 0 
Web site visits 12468 
Program attendance 24 
Fax 0 
ILL lent out 8 
ILL borrowed 6 
In-house renewals 115 

Page 68 of 92



 

 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 3 

                                           May 4, 2020 
  

Director’s Report:   
 
The written director’s report for April 2020 was reviewed.  McCann noted the current orders  
from the State prohibit the Library from resuming operations through the month of May. The  
traditional summer reading program with large crowds gathering for programming has been  
cancelled, and Library staff are creatively working on launching a new online summer reading  
program with the help of reading and event program management software called Beanstack.   
Currently, patrons are taking advantage of online registrations for new library cards, as well as  
online resources such as downloadable books and movies, and other electronic content.  
Overdrive usage is up 7%, Hoopla is up 37%, RBDigital is up 11%, and Kanopy is up 36%.          
 
 
Personnel:   
 
McCann informed the Board that Amy Johnson, Adult Reference Librarian, and Sandy Colson, 
Library Assistant would both be reaching their anniversary date of hire in the month of May.  No 
board action was required due to the January 2020 wage rate adjustment schedule.  
 
 
Committee Reports:   
 
Finance Committee minutes from April 16, 2020 were included and reviewed. 
Facilities Committee minutes from April 22, 2020 were included and reviewed.  
The Policy Committee did not meet in the month of January. 
  
 
Old Business:   
 
Regarding the possible 2nd floor expansion project, both the Finance and Facilities committees 
were in agreement with McCann for the project to be placed on hold.   
The Board was supportive of a pause in the project during this period whereby Library services 
and space needs may be significantly altered for the foreseeable future due to COVID-19 
protocols.  McCann will stay in contact with HB+M architects.   
 
For the HVAC controls issue, McCann received 3 written proposals for assistance with 
producing an RFP for bids.  As requested by the Board, the Finance and Facilities committees 
reviewed the responses and both are recommending for the Board to approve the Peter Basso 
Associated, Inc. proposal for professional services.  Quigley moved to authorize McCann to 
accept, and enter into contract with Peter Basso Associates, Inc. Consulting Engineers at a cost 
of $18,200 plus reimbursable expenses.  Second by Palmer.  A roll call vote was taken.  
Cousins=aye, Davenport=aye, Korinek=aye, LaVoie=aye, Palmer=aye, Quigley=aye, 
Simpson=aye, absent=1.  Motion carried.    
 
Regarding the Officers of the Board discussing staffing needs, a meeting was not scheduled in 
April due to the Library closure. 
 

Page 69 of 92



 

 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 4 

                                           May 4, 2020 
  

McCann requested a review and possible adjustment of the Emergency Closing/Pay Policy for 
Extended Closures/Pandemics to align it with the Federal Families First Coronavirus Response 
Act (FFCRA).  Simpson moved to amend the language to read as follows:   
 

Situation:  Employees elect to stay home while the Library continues to provide service. 
 Action:  Employees receive a reduced income of 66% of regular wages. 
 
Second by Davenport.  A roll call vote was taken.  Cousins=aye, Davenport=aye, Korinek=aye, 
LaVoie=aye, Palmer=aye, Quigley=aye, Simpson=aye, absent=1.  Motion carried.    
 
 
New Business:  None. 
 
Public Comment:  None. 
   
Adjournment:  Having completed all items on the agenda, the meeting was deemed adjourned 
by Board consensus at 8:24 p.m. 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
Sherry Simpson,     Kimberly Swoverland,   
Secretary      Recording Secretary     

Page 70 of 92



 

 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 1 

                                             June 1, 2020 
  

 
 
 
     
 Dexter District Library Board of Trustees 
                      Meeting Minutes 
                         June 1, 2020 
                              7:00 p.m. 

 
Members Present:   Pat Cousins, Barbara Davenport, Cassy Korinek, Jim LaVoie                    
                                Rosemary Quigley, Sherry Simpson, Shelly Vrsek 
 
Members Absent:    Donna Palmer 
 
Others Present:        Paul McCann, Library Director 
           Kim Swoverland, Recording Secretary 
 
Due to the continuing COVID-19 restrictions, and the closure of the Library building to the 
public, this meeting was conducted through online video conferencing via Zoom.  Meeting 
details and instructions for joining the meeting were publicized on the Library’s website, as was 
the meeting agenda and Board packet.  President LaVoie called the meeting to order at 7:05 p.m. 
 
LaVoie called for additions/changes to the presented agenda.    Davenport moved to approve the 
agenda as presented.  Second by Korinek.  A roll call vote was taken.  Cousins=aye, 
Davenport=aye, Korinek=aye, LaVoie=aye, Quigley=aye, Simpson=aye, Vrsek=aye, absent=1.  
Motion carried.    
   
LaVoie called for corrections to the minutes of the May 4, 2020 regular Board Meeting. No 
corrections were requested.  Cousins moved to approve the minutes from the May 4, 2020 
regular Board Meeting as presented.  Second by Korinek.  A roll call vote was taken.  
Cousins=aye, Davenport=aye, Korinek=aye, LaVoie=aye, Quigley=abstain, Simpson=aye, 
Vrsek=aye, absent=1.  Motion carried. 
 
Public Comment:  None. 
 
Friends of the Library Report:   McCann attended a Friends meeting via Zoom in the prior 
week and reported the decision was made to suspend book sales through the month of August.  
The Friends plan to continue to meet to assess evolving conditions, but for the foreseeable future, 
book donations and Friends activity in the Library building has been suspended. 
 
Treasurer’s Report:  McCann presented the Treasurer’s report for May 2020.  Balance Sheets 
and Statements of Operation were provided for the months of April 2020 and May 2020 for both 
101 General Operations and 301 Debt Service.  The paid bills for May 2020 were reviewed.  
Quigley moved to approve the bills paid during the month of May 2020.  Second by Vrsek.  A 
roll call vote was taken.  Cousins=aye, Davenport=aye, Korinek=aye, LaVoie=aye, Quigley=aye, 
Simpson=aye, Vrsek=aye, absent=1.  Motion carried.   
 
 

Page 71 of 92



 

 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 2 

                                             June 1, 2020 
  

 
Michigan CLASS:  End of the month statements were not available for printing with the Board 
Packet.  McCann noted the interest rates have dropped, but remain higher than any other option. 
 
Budget Changes: McCann noted the Library closure of the physical building has resulted in 
digital/electronic areas of the collection being used more heavily, and would therefore like to 
shift budgeted funds from the Non-Traditional Collections line to the E-Books/Audio line.  This 
would be a neutral reallocation of funds and would not affect the bottom line overall expenses. 
Vrsek moved to reduce the budgeted balance of line 101-790-754 Non-Traditional Collections 
by $10,000.00, reducing that line’s budgeted balance from $20,000.00 to $10,000.00 and 
increase the budgeted balance of line 101-790-751 E-Books/Audio by $10,000.00, increasing 
that line’s budgeted balance from $47,000.00 to $57,000.00.  Second by Davenport.  A roll call 
vote was taken.  Cousins=aye, Davenport=aye, Korinek=aye, LaVoie=aye, Palmer=aye, 
Quigley=aye, Simpson=aye, absent=1.  Motion carried.    
 
Reimbursements:  None.  
   
Circulation Statistics:  Statistics for May 2020 include: 
 

 
 

May 2020
Circulation Statistics May
Adult Books 3
Young Adult Books 1
Children's Books 0
Magazines 0
DVD 0
Books on CD 0
Music CD 0
Realia/Objects/Equip 0
Overdrive 3157
hoopla 2587
RBDigital mag/audio 413
Kanopy 1081
Renewals via web 0
In-House 0
Total 7242

Library visits 0
Reference questions 110
Items withdrawn 0
New items added 695
Total holdings 113418
New cards issued 29
Total card holders 11329
Internet usage 57
Museum/Park Pass 0
Web site visits 10891
Program attendance 69
Fax 0
ILL lent out 0
ILL borrowed 0
In-house renewals 241

Page 72 of 92



 

 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 3 

                                             June 1, 2020 
  

 
 
Director’s Report:  The written director’s report for May 2020 was available and reviewed.  
   
 
Personnel:  McCann informed the Board that Library Pages Shannon O’Connor and Laura 
Sutherland will be reaching their anniversary date of hire in the month of June. No board action 
was required due to the January 2020 wage rate adjustment schedule.  
 
 
Committee Reports:   
 
Finance Committee did not meet in the month of May.  Due to the COVID-19 restrictions, it has 
been suggested to use the 2019-2020 fiscal year budget as the basis for the 2020-2021 fiscal year 
budget, to which the Board had no objections. 
Facilities Committee was scheduled for May 27th but was cancelled due to a power outage.  
Policy Committee meeting minutes from May 19, 2020 were included and reviewed. 
  
 
Old Business:   
 
HB+M Architects project remains on hold. 
 
For the HVAC controls issue, Peter Basso Associates, Inc. Consulting Engineers is now under 
contract and the work will begin as soon as possible.  
 
Officers of the Board meeting to discuss staffing needs was not scheduled in May. 
 
McCann requested another review and adjustment of the Emergency Closing/Pay Policy for 
Extended Closures/Pandemics.  It was requested for the Policy Committee to review and make 
recommendations to the new Temporary Telecommuting Policy, to be included with the Pay 
Policy.  Davenport moved to amend the language of the Pay Policy as presented.  Second by 
Simpson.  A roll call vote was taken.  Cousins=aye, Davenport=aye, Korinek=aye, LaVoie=aye, 
Quigley=aye, Simpson=aye, Vrsek=aye, absent=1.  Motion carried.    
 
The Policy Committee presented the Dexter District Library Pandemic/Epidemic Exposure 
Prevention, Preparedness and Response Plan for the Board’s review.  Once approved, each 
Library Employee will need to read and agree to abide by the Plan’s requirements.  The 
committee explained their intention was to make the Plan adaptable to changing public health 
conditions.  Quigley moved to approve the Dexter District Library Pandemic/Epidemic Exposure 
Prevention, Preparedness and Response Plan as presented.  Second by Cousins.  A roll call vote 
was taken:  Cousins=aye, Davenport=aye, Korinek=aye, LaVoie=aye, Quigley=aye, 
Simpson=aye, Vrsek=aye, absent=1.  Motion carried.    
 
 
 
 
 

Page 73 of 92



 

 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 4 

                                             June 1, 2020 
  

 
 
New Business:  None. 
 
Public Comment:  None. 
 
Adjournment:  Having completed all items on the agenda, the meeting was deemed adjourned 
by Board consensus at 8:53 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
Sherry Simpson,     Kimberly Swoverland,   
Secretary      Recording Secretary     

Page 74 of 92



�
�

:DVKWHQDZ�&RXQW\�%URDGEDQG�6XUYH\��
'HWDLOHG�5HVXOWV�DQG�9LVXDOL]DWLRQV�

�

�
� �

�

Page 75 of 92



'H[WHU�7RZQVKLS�'RZQORDG�6SHHG

6RXUFHV�� (VUL�� +(5(�� *DUPLQ�� ,QWHUPDS�� LQFUHPHQW� 3� &RUS��� *(%&2�
86*6�� )$2�� 136�� 15&$1�� *HR%DVH�� ,*1�� .DGDVWHU� 1/�� 2UGQDQFH
6XUYH\�� (VUL� -DSDQ�� 0(7,�� (VUL� &KLQD� �+RQJ� .RQJ��� �F�� 2SHQ6WUHHW0DS
FRQWULEXWRUV��DQG�WKH�*,6�8VHU�&RPPXQLW\

'H[WHUB7RZQVKLSB'RZQORDGB6SHHG

�

�

��

��

���

0XQLFLSDO�%RXQGDU\

���������
� � ���� PL

� � �� NP

���������

61 of 84Page 76 of 92



'H[WHU�7RZQVKLS�%URDGEDQG�$YDLODELOLW\

6RXUFHV�� (VUL�� +(5(�� *DUPLQ�� ,QWHUPDS�� LQFUHPHQW� 3� &RUS��� *(%&2�
86*6�� )$2�� 136�� 15&$1�� *HR%DVH�� ,*1�� .DGDVWHU� 1/�� 2UGQDQFH
6XUYH\�� (VUL� -DSDQ�� 0(7,�� (VUL� &KLQD� �+RQJ� .RQJ��� �F�� 2SHQ6WUHHW0DS
FRQWULEXWRUV��DQG�WKH�*,6�8VHU�&RPPXQLW\

'H[WHUB7RZQVKLSB%URDGEDQGB$YDLODELOLW\

1�$

<HV

1R

0XQLFLSDO�%RXQGDU\

���������
� � ���� PL

� � �� NP

���������

62 of 84Page 77 of 92



This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Page 78 of 92



 
 
 
 
 

 

 2201 Hogback Road ◆ Ann Arbor, Michigan  48105-9732 ◆ OFFICE  (734) 971-8400 ◆ FAX  (734) 973-4624 ◆ EMAIL  sheriffinfo@ewashtenaw.org 

JERRY L. CLAYTON MARK A. PTASZEK 

 SHERIFF   UNDERSHERIFF 

 

Public Safety – Quality Service – Strong Communities 
Serving Washtenaw County since 1823 

 
 
July 10, 2020 
 
To:       Harley Rider, Dexter Township Supervisor      
From:     Shane Peltier, Lieutenant 
Cc:     Keith Flores, Police Services Commander       
Re:     June 1-June 30, 2020 Police Services Monthly Report 
 
During the month of June there were 164 calls for service. During this time Deputies made 12 traffic 
stops with 6 citations issued.   
 
Noteworthy events in Dexter Township during last month include: 
  
On June 1st Deputies handled a fraud complaint which occurred to a Dexter Township resident. 
According to the victim, someone had tried to file an unemployment claim in her name. The victim 
learned of this through a letter that she received from the unemployment office with a claim number in 
her name. At this time there is no suspect or investigative leads.  
 
On June 22nd Deputies were dispatched to Dexter Townhall Rd. and North Territorial Rd. for a vehicle 
crash. Upon arrival and throughout the investigation it was learned that the driver of the vehicle was 
intoxicated. The driver admitted to drinking and driving. The driver lost control of the vehicle and went 
off of the road. This case has been sent to the Prosecutors Office for review.  
 
On June 24th Deputies took a complaint of a sexual assault which occurred in the 10000 block of Island 
Lake. The victim reported that she was inappropriately touched by a male subject while attending a 
gathering. At this time the victim does not wish to prosecute.  
 
On June 24th Deputies responded to the boat launch at Half Moon Lake for a possible drowning. Upon 
arrival Deputies learned that there was no drowning and that a male had a possible heart attack. A male 
subject was water skiing and upon returning to the boat he became unresponsive. The male was 
transported by Huron Valley Ambulance to the hospital with a light pulse.   
 
Banked Hours Update: 

- Banked hours will be calculated to reflect the time owed since being on 12-hour shifts. 
 
Dexter Collaboration Out of Area / Into Area Time 
 
- DWD Out of Area Time – 236 minutes (Year to Date – 2577) 
- DWD Into Area Time – 195 minutes (Year to Date – 1383)  
 
 
 

Page 79 of 92



DEXTER TOWNSHIP MONTHLY POLICE SERVICES DATA

June 2020

Traffic Stops 12 114 -89% 247 484 -49%

Citations 6 67 -91% 74 176 -58%

Drunk Driving (OWI) 1 2 -50% 6 7 -14%

Drugged Driving (OUID) 0 0 - 0 0 -

Calls for Service Total 164 253 -35% 793 1373 -42%

Calls for Service                  
(Traffic stops and non-response 

medicals removed)

118 118 0% 447 777 -42%

Robberies 0 0 - 0 0 -

Assaultive Crimes 2 2 0% 5 10 -50%

Home Invasions 0 0 - 1 2 -50%

Breaking and Entering’s 0 0 - 0 0 -

Larcenies 0 3 - 7 5 40%

Vehicle Thefts 0 0 - 0 0 -

Traffic Crashes 9 8 13% 43 97 -56%

Medical Assists 3 3 0% 11 19 -42%

Animal Complaints           
(ACO Response)

0 7 - 2 27 -93%

In/Out of Area Time Month 
(minutes)

YTD 
(minutes)

Into Area Time 195 1383

Out of Area Time 236 2577

Investigative Ops (DB) 0 7845

Secondary Road Patrol 161 503

County Wide 7125 23996

Hours 

Accum.

Hours 

Used
Balance

Banked Hours

+ = Positive Change                                                    

- = Negative Change

%    

Change
Incidents

Month 

2020

Month 

2019

%    

Change

YTD       

2020

YTD       

2019

Page 80 of 92



Page 81 of 92



Page 82 of 92



Page 83 of 92



Page 84 of 92



Page 85 of 92



Page 86 of 92



Page 87 of 92



Page 88 of 92



  

Western Washtenaw Recycling Authority 

WWRA Facility 

8025 Werkner Road, Chelsea, MI 48118 

Website: wwrarecycles.org 

 

Board of Trustees Meeting 
City of Chelsea Council Chambers 

January 8, 2020 
 
 

1.  Call to Order   Chair Compton called the meeting to order at 7:04 pm. 
 

2. Roll Call and Introductions 
City of Chelsea   Tony Iannelli – Present 
Dexter Township   Michael Compton – Present 
Lima Township   Nanette Havens – Present 
Lyndon Township   Mary Jane Maze – Present 
Manchester Township   Laurie Carey - Absent 
Bridgewater Township  Vacant 
Facility Manager   Marc Williams – Present 
 
Also, Present: Shawn Sinacola and Jean Dunn 
  

3. Approval of the Agenda 
Motion by Iannelli, supported by Maze, to approve the agenda as presented.  Motion carried 4-0. 
 

4. Public Comment 
Shawn Sinacola, Chelsea resident, avid composter, teacher at Chelsea High School, advisor of the Arbor 
club, a facilitator of the Chelsea Zero Waste Coalition, stated her students are composting food scraps 
out of the High School cafeteria. She is encouraging WWRA to incorporate food scrap composting into 
the current system in order to meet the Washtenaw Solid Waste Management plan of working to zero 
waste. She also inquired about how many plastic bags come through the recycling facility as the school 
can get credit for them. Facility Manager Marc responded about 1 ton a week. 
 
Jean Dunn, Chelsea Senior Center and Chelsea Zero Waste Coalition.  She wanted to know if the 
garbage bags that are used for Chelsea’s garbage pickup are biodegradable?  Facility Manager Marc 
suggested she speak with Travis at the Solid Waste Transfer Station.  She invited Marc to the Chelsea 
Senior Center to speak on recycling regarding what is appropriate and not appropriate to recycle.  She 
was wondering if a tour of the recycling facility could be scheduled for the seniors. 
 

5. Approval of Minutes – Mary Jane Maze, Secretary 
Motion by Iannelli, supported by Havens, to approve the October 23, 2019 minutes as presented.   
Motion carried 4-0. 
 
 
 

Page 89 of 92



WWRA Board Minutes  January 8, 2020 

  

Page 2 of 3                                                                                                                       draft 01/30/2020 

  Edited 02/11/2020 
                                                     Approved 06/24/2020 

6. Treasurer’s Report – Nanette Havens, Treasurer 
a. Bond   Interest    Balance $345,454.06 
b. Operating   Interest $593.50  Balance $241,359.77 
c. General       Balance $123,183.00 

Motion by Maze, supported by Iannelli, to approve the bills (checks) for October 2019 through 
November 21, 2019 in the amount of $29,100.66.  Motion carried 4-0. 
 
Motion by Haven, supported by Maze, to approve the bills (checks) for November 22, 2019 
through December 30, 2019 in the amount of $34,614.36.  Motion carried 4-0. 
 

7. Facility Manager’s Report – Marc Williams 
A. Volume and Revenue Report 
i. October: Volume 600.95 Tons processed; revenue $40,082.26, down $130,000 from 2018 due to 

commodity prices; bills are down $89,372.56 from 2018  
ii. November: 506.00 Tons processed; revenue $56,833.53, down $143,242.11 from 2018; bills were 

$29,100.66, down $111,789.86 from 2018. 
iii. Plastics went up in revenue.  Currently over $1,200 a ton, over double from the start of 2019. 
iv. 2019 saw 3,754 bin pick-ups, one bin less than 2018, with three less bin sites.  
v. 2019 averaged 39 bales a day. 
vi. Bills were down $288,454.46 at the end of the year. 
vii. News ($110,00.00) and cardboard ($150,000.00) are up. 
viii. Insurance was underbudgeted in 2019. 
ix. Cost to take nonrecyclables to the Chelsea Transfer Station is approximately $50.00 a ton. 

 
B. Operating Status of Facility and Single Stream System 
i. October: Change the valve on the 2005 Sterling, which operates the roll-off system. Used valve from 

2000 Sterling that is no longer in use.  Replaced emergency stops on two conveyers. 
ii. December:  Replaced two valves in the baler. 
 
C. Equipment Update 
i. October: Replaced semi muffler and warranty bumper on the new Mack truck (due to metal cracking),  
ii. Spent $180,000.00 on a new truck.  
iii. December: Repaired Bobcat.  
iv. MachineX will install the unit by taking down the aluminum siding, cost $19,700. 
v. Received quote for air compressor. 
vi. Received quote for electrical hook up. 
vii. Received $300.00 quote for Internet hook up (to be completed in March). 

Motion by Compton, supported by Iannelli, to auto deduct from the WWRA checking account, up 
to $75.00 per month, for internet service.  Motion carried 4-0. 
 

D. Contracted Recycling Collectors Update 
i. October: No change in contracted recyclers.  
ii. November: Added Susan Brown Law Office, Chelsea Wellness Center; concluded Putnam Township 

pilot program, cost saving of $14,760 per bin for that site. 
 

Page 90 of 92



WWRA Board Minutes  January 8, 2020 

  

Page 3 of 3                                                                                                                       draft 01/30/2020 

  Edited 02/11/2020 
                                                     Approved 06/24/2020 

 
E. Grant Update  

WWRA has received a grant.  Marc said that they can soon start building the robot. 
 

8. Education Outreach - On hold at WWRA. 
 

9. Budget Update – Marc Williams, Facility Manager 
Handout and discussion.  Also, Compton handout, explanation, and discussion. 
 

10. Meeting Calendar for 2020 – Chairperson, Mike Compton 
Meetings are the fourth Wednesday in each month unless there isn’t a fourth Wednesday and then it is 
scheduled the third Wednesday. 
No meeting in July, vacations. 
No meeting in November, Thanksgiving holiday. 
December meeting scheduled early (the 9th), to avoid the Christmas holiday. 
January 2021 meeting scheduled for January 13th so there isn’t a large gap between Dec/Jan meetings. 
Motion by Compton, supported by Iannelli, to approve the WWRA Board Meeting Schedule for 
2020.  Motion carried 4-0. 
 

11. Comments of Board Members and Staff – None 
 

12. Public Comment – None 
 

13. Future Agenda Items 
A. Budget Update – Marc Williams 

 
14. Adjournment 

Motion by Iannelli, supported by Compton, to adjourn.  Motion carried 4-0. 
Adjournment at 9:02 pm 

 

Next regularly scheduled meeting of the WWRA Board of Trustees will be Wednesday, February 26, 2020 
at 7:00 P.M. at the City of Chelsea Council Chambers. 

 

 

 

        Mary Jane Maze    Janis Miller 
        WWRA Secretary   Recording Secretary 

Page 91 of 92



This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Page 92 of 92


	10-D Township Welcome Signs.pdf
	zz 10-D (2) Welcome Signs Estimate.pdf
	Sheet1


	11 Payments packet.pdf
	July
	$32,345.94
	Gross Payroll
	Grand Total
	Disbursements
	$38,994.91
	$
	Agency Fund
	MLWSA Debt
	Total

	R-03 Treasurers report.pdf
	ADP1F71.tmp
	7-21-20





